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GROUP OF CONPANIES

Statements of Members of the Board of Directors
(In accordance with article 4 par. 2 L. 3556/ 2007)

The members of the Board of Directors of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA

1. Vassilis S. Fourlis, Chairman,
2. Dafni A. Fourlis, Vice Chairman and
3. Apostolos D. Petalas, CEO

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

a. The Annual Financial Statements (Consolidated and Separate) of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA for the
period 1/1/ - 31/12/2015 which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as endorsed by the EU, provide a true and fair view of the Assets, Liabilities
and Shareholders Equity along with the income statement of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. as well as

of the companies that are included in the consolidation taken as a whole.

b. The Annual Report of Board of Directors provides a true and fair view of the evolution,
performance and financial position of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. and of the companies included in

the consolidation, taken as a whole, as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties

they face.
Maroussi, March 7 2016
The Chairman The Vice Chairman The CEO
Vassilis S. Fourlis Dafni A. Fourlis Apostolos D. Petalas
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOURLIS
HOLDINGS SA FOR THE PERIOD

1/1-31/12/2015
(In accordance with L. 3556/ 2007)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF YEAR 2016

Dear Shareholders,

Please find below, for your approval, the Annual Financial Report (Consolidated and Separate) of
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2015.

The Group apart from the Company FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. also includes subsidiaries over which
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. has direct and indirect control.

1. THE GROUP - BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The FOURLIS Group which consists of the parent Company FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. along with its

subsidiaries and their subsidiaries is mainly operating in the Retail Trading of Home Furniture and

Household Goods and the Retail Trading of Sporting Goods.

The subsidiary companies and their subsidiaries that are included in the consolidated financial

statements for the year 2015, grouped per Segment and countries of operation are the following:

a) Full method

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA Stores)

The retail trading of home furniture and household goods segment includes the following Companies:

HOUSEMARKET SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has a direct shareholding
of 100%.

e H.M. HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has an
indirect shareholding of 100%.

e TRADE LOGISTICS S.A. which operates in Greece and the parent company has an indirect
shareholding of 100% (except one share). In the retail trading of home furniture and household
goods segment, the section of the company TRADE LOGISTICS SA that provides warehousing
services to the company HOUSEMARKET SA is included.

e  RENTIS REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has
an indirect shareholding of 100% (except one share).

e HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD which operates in Bulgaria and the parent company has an
indirect shareholding of 100% (except one share).

e  WYLDES LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has an indirect shareholding of
100%.
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Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT and TAF stores)

The retail trading of sporting goods segment includes the following Companies:

INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has a direct
shareholding of 100%.

INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has

an indirect shareholding of 100%.

GENCO BULGARIA EOOD which operates in Bulgaria and the parent company has an indirect
shareholding of 100%.

INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. which operates in Turkey and the

parent company has an indirect shareholding of 100%.

TRADE LOGISTICS S.A. which operates in Greece and the parent company has an indirect
shareholding of 100% (except one share). In the retail trading of sporting goods segment, the
section of the company TRADE LOGISTICS SA that provides warehousing services to the company
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA is included.

Retail Trading of Sporting Goods segment includes the retail sales of Sporting goods of GENCO
TRADE SRL which operates in Romania. The parent company has a direct shareholding of 1,57%
and an indirect shareholding of 98,43%.

Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment

The wholesale trading of electrical equipment segment includes the company SERVICE ONE S.A. which

operates in Greece and the parent company had an indirect shareholding of 99,94% until 24/11/2015.
On 24/11/2015, the subsidiary company FOURLIS TRADE S.A. included in the discontinued operation,

sold, transferred and handed over by full ownership, possession and occupation the nominal shares of

the company SERVICE ONE S.A. which correspond to 79,95% of its investment to the current paid up

share capital of the company, to the third company ETYT LTD.

Companies included in the Discontinued Operation

Discontinued operation includes:

The Retail Trading of Fashion Activity segment (NEW LOOK stores) of the company GENCO
TRADE SRL due to termination of the operation of the stores network of NEWLOOK in Romania,
which was completed in July 2015.

The company FOURLIS TRADE S.A. which operates in Greece and the parent company has a
direct shareholding of 100%. FOURLIS TRADE SA disinvested within 2014 from wholesale trading

of electrical equipment activity.
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b) Net Equity method

Affiliated Companies
The Group’s consolidated data include, the following affiliated companies:

e  SPEEDEX SA which operates in Greece in the courier services. The parent company has a direct
shareholding of 49,55%.

e VYNER LTD which operates in Cyprus and the subsidiary company WYLDES LTD has a direct
shareholding of 50%.

e  SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPRISES LTD which operates in Cyprus, in which WYLDES LTD has a direct
shareholding of 50%.

2. FINANCIAL DATA — IMPORTANT FACTS & FIGURES

(All the amounts are in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

Sales for retail trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA Stores) increased by 4,4%
compared to the corresponding period of 2014 and sales of the retail trading of Sporting Goods
(INTERSPORT & TAF Stores) increased by 5,7%. More specifically:

Despite the unfavorable market conditions in Greek market and the economic uncertainty, the Group's
retail business gained significant market share in Greece and in other countries where the Group
operates. The retail trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA) segment, realized sales of
€ 279,5 million for the year 2015 (2014: € 267,7 million). The EBITDA totaled € 25,6 million compared
to € 19,7 million in 2014 and reported profits before tax € 4,6 million versus € 1,1 million losses in
2014. On 31/12/2015, seven (7) IKEA Stores are operating, five (5) of which in Greece, one (1) in
Cyprus and one (1) in Bulgaria and six (6) Pick up Points with IKEA products five (5) of which in
Greece (in Rhodes Island, Patra, Chania, Heraklion, and Komotini) and one (1) in Bulgaria (Varna).

Moreover, e-commerce stores are operating in Greece, Cyprus and Bulgaria.

The retail trading of Sporting Goods segment (INTERSPORT and TAF Stores), realized sales of € 129,2
million for the year 2015 (2014: € 122,4 million). The segment’s EBITDA for the year 2015 totaled €
10,9 million (€ 10,8 million in 2014), while recorded profits before tax € 2,8 million compared to € 4,3
million in 2014. The segment on 31/12/2015 has one hundred and six (106) INTERSPORT Stores
versus one hundred and two (102) on 31/12/2014, analyzed as follows: forty seven (47) in Greece,
twenty eight (28) in Romania, twenty two (22) in Turkey, five (5) in Bulgaria and four (4) in Cyprus.
Moreover, e-shops are operating in Greece, in Romania and in Turkey for better customer service.
Within the year 2015, through the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A., four (4) TAF stores in
Greece (Piraeus 19/3/2015, Kifissia 19/3/2015, Glyfada 16/10/2015, Maroussi 27/10/2015) and two
(2) in Turkey Istanbul (Metrocity 9/3/2015, Akbati 3/11/2015) started their operation. Moreover, within
the 2" semester of 2015, the new logistics center of INTERSPORT in Greece started its operation with

automated systems of warehousing and order fulfillment which will gradually serve all companies of
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the segment. All the relevant supply chain services are provided by the Group’s company TRADE
LOGISTICS which also supports HOUSEMARKET SA (IKEA stores) in Greece.

The continued operation of wholesale trading of electrical equipment segment includes repairing —
maintenance services of electrical equipment implemented by the subsidiary SERVICE ONE SA until
24/11/2015 when 79,95% of the current paid up share capital of the company was transferred by the
parent company FOURLIS TRADE SA with a contractual transfer agreement and the rest 20,05%
within maximum two years. The continued operation of wholesale trading of electrical equipment
segment recorded for the period 1/1/2015-31/12/2015 € 4,6 million sales compared to € 5,5 million in
the corresponding period of 2014, while the EBITDA of the segment recorded losses € 0,1 million (€

0,1 million in 2014) and € 0,6 million losses before tax compared to € 0,2 million in 2014.

Discontinued operation of the Group includes the wholesale trading of electrical equipment
implemented by the subsidiary of the Group FOURLIS TRADE SA and the retail trading of fashion
activity (NEWLOOK Stores). The Group within 2014 disinvested from the wholesale trading of electrical
equipment segment, while the retail trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores) segment has no
stores operating any longer in Romania compared to seven (7) at the end of 2014. The termination of

the operation of NEWLOOK stores network in Romania was completed within July 2015.

Consolidated profits before tax amounted to € 2,5 million compared to € 9,1 million losses in 2014.

Net profit amounted to € 0,3 million compared to € 11,5 million losses in 2014.

In Greece, the Management of the Group adjusts its actions in the context formed by the
macroeconomic environment. In other countries, where the Group operates, the business plan with
selective investments was implemented not only in the retail trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT
and TAF Stores) segment but also in the retail trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA

Stores) segment.

In an effort to present a complete and real view of the Group’s performance, we report the
consolidated results per segment for the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 versus 1/1 — 31/12/2014 at the

following tables. Amounts are in thousands of euros.
Continued operation:

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores):

2015 2014 2015/ 2014
Revenue 279.547 267.744 1,04
EBITDA 25.554 19.665 1,30
Profit before Tax 4,576 -1.067 -
7
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Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT and TAF stores)

2015 2014 2015/ 2014
Revenue 129.231 122.352 1,06
EBITDA 10.926 10.830 1,01
Profit before Tax 2.836 4.310 0,66
Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment:
2015 2014 2015/ 2014
Revenue 4.570 5.474 0,83
EBITDA -99 -53 1,87
Loss before Tax -627 -168 3,73
Discontinued operation:
2015 2014 2015/ 2014
Revenue 1.142 17.899 0,06
EBITDA -2.905 -3.521 0,83
Loss before Tax -3.185 -6.823 0,47

In the comparative data of the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 there is a distinct presentation of the

discontinued operation of wholesale trading of electrical equipment through the company FOURLIS

TRADE SA and the retail trading of fashion activity (NEW LOOK stores).

Group Consolidated:

Total — Continued and Discontinued operation:

2015 2014 2015/ 2014
Revenue 414.442 413.370 1,00
EBITDA 32.608 25.908 1,26
Profit before Tax 2.517 -9.137 -
Net Profit after Tax and Minority Interests 253 -11.475 -

We note that on a consolidated basis the Group’s Total Equity (after minority interest) at December 31,

2015 amounts to € 157,6 million versus an amount of € 158,4 million of year end 2014.

3. Basic Financial Indicators (Consolidated)

Below please find basic Indicators for the Group Financial Structure and Performance & Efficiency

according to the consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Financial Report of the

Group, for the years 2015 and 2014 respectively.
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Financial Structure Indicators:

2015 2014
Current Assets/ Total Assets 30,79% 34,72%
Total Liabilities/ Total Equity & Liabilities 62,33% 64,59%
Total Equity (after minority interest)/ Total Equity & 37.67% 35 41%
Liabilities ! !
Current Assets/ Short Term Liabilities 82,04% 89,26%

Performance & Efficiency basic Indicators:

2015 2014
Operating Profit/ Revenues 4,65% 1,37%
Profit before tax/ Total Equity (after minority interest) 1,60% =5,77%

4. Operating Performance — Important developments:

During the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 the following share capital changes were realised:

RENTIS S.A.: Following the resolutions of the General Assembly of shareholders held on 3/6/2015
and 16/12/2015, an increase in the share capital of the company was implemented by the total
amount of euros 1.950.000,00 euros by issuing 1.950.000 new common nominal vote shares, of
nominal value € 1,00 per share. This share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder
H.M. HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LIMITED. After the aforementioned increase, the share capital of
the company amounts to € 14.460.000,00 divided into 14.460.000 nominal shares of nominal

value € 1,00 per share.

INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S.: Following the resolutions of
November 2015 of the General Assembly of the shareholders of the company, an increase in the
share capital of the company was implemented by the total amount of euros 4.000.000,00 euros,
by issuing 10.000.000 new common nominal vote shares, of nominal value TL 0,40 per share. This
share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. After
the aforementioned increase, the share capital of the company amounts to TL 40.612.700,00

divided into 101.531.750 nominal shares of nominal value TL 0,40 per share.

GENCO TRADE SRL: Following the resolution of the General Assembly of the shareholders of the
company, the share capital of the company increased by the amount of RON 8.025.000,00 by
issuing 37.500 nominal shares, of nominal value RON 214,00 each. The amount of this share capital

increase, which was registered on the commercial register on 30/7/2015, was totally covered by the
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shareholder INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. After the aforementioned share capital increase, the
registration of which in the commercial register is completed, the share capital on 31/12/2015
amounts to RON 67.996.360,00 divided into 317.740 nominal shares of nominal value RON 214,00

each.

e WYLDES LTD: Under ordinary resolution of 10/3/2015 and 4/12/2015 of the only member -
shareholder of the company, namely HOUSEMARKET SA, the share capital increased by the total
amount of € 260,00 by issuing 260 shares, of nominal value €1,00 per share. Therefore the share
capital of the company on 31/12/2015 amounts to € 6.660,00.

e SERVICE ONE S.A.: On 24/11/2015 FOURLIS TRADE S.A. sold and transferred to ETYT LTD, by full
ownership, possession and occupation, 290.068 nominal shares of nominal value € 0,30 per share
and total nominal value € 87.020,40, corresponding to 79,95% of the paid-up share capital of the
Company. Following the resolution of 31/12/2015 of the General Assembly of the shareholders of
the company, the share capital increased by the amount of € 400.000,20 by issuing 1.333.334 new
nominal shares, of nominal value € 0,30 per share. The preemptive right of the existing shares
was set to be exercised not later than 31/3/2016 and the share capital increase to be covered not
later than 15/4/2016. Following the agreement of all shareholders, the shareholder ETYT LTD
undertook the payment of the total amount of the share capital increase. As long as this share
capital increase is completed by full payment of its amount, the share capital will amount to €
508.840,20 divided into 1.696.134 nominal shares, of nominal value € 0,30 per share, while the
investment of the Group (through FOURLIS TRADE S.A.) to the company will be formed to 4,28%

after the aforementioned increase of the paid-up share capital.

Apart from the above, no other changes in the share capital of the companies of the Group were made
within the year 2015.

The parent company FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. does not have any branches.

The subsidiaries and especially the retail trading companies have developed a significant chain of

stores in Greece and abroad.

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores): The Group operates
seven (7) IKEA Stores, five (5) of which in Greece, one (1) in Cyprus and one (1) in Bulgaria.
Moreover, five (5) Pick up Points with IKEA products are operating in Greece in Rhodes Island, Patras,
Chania, Heraklion and Komotini and one (1) in Varna of Bulgaria (23/7/2015) as well as three (3) e-
commerce stores in Greece, in Cyprus (April 2015) and in Bulgaria (April 2015).

Retail trading of sporting goods (INTERSPORT and TAF stores): The segment currently
operates one hundred and six (106) stores [forty seven (47) in Greece, twenty eight (28) in Romania,
five (5) in Bulgaria, four (4) in Cyprus and twenty two (22) in Turkey]. INTERSPORT stores added to
the network during period 1/1 - 31/12/2015: two (2) new stores in Greece and more specifically in
Athens, in Kalithea (20/3/2015) and in Panormou (27/3/2015), one (1) new store in Romania in
Bucharest Mega Mall (14/5/2015) and one (1) new store in Turkey in Istanbul Citys (10/9/2015).

10
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Furthermore, TAF stores started their operation within 2015: four (4) in Greece, in Piraeus
(19/3/2015), Kifissia (19/3/2015), Glyfada (16/10/2015) and Maroussi (27/10/2015) and two (2) in
Turkey (Istanbul) in Metrocity (9/3/2015) and in Akbati (3/11/2015).

5. Stock Price Evolution

Below is a chart providing a comparison between FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. share price and Athens
Stock Exchange General Index for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015.
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6. Stock Option Plan

The Extraordinary General Assembly of the Company on 27/9/2013, under the context of Stock Option
Plan, approved the disposal of 1.507.678 stock options and authorized the Board of Directors to
regulate the procedural issues and details. The program will be implemented in three waves, with a
maturity period of three years per wave. Options must be exercised within five years since their
maturity date. In case that there are undisposed options, after the allocation of options mentioned
above, these options will be cancelled. The underlying share price of each wave is the closing market
price of the share at the decision date of the Extraordinary General Assembly regarding the approval
of the SOP.

On 25/11/2013, the BoD granted 502.550 stock options, which compose the first of the three waves.
The underlying share price to which the granted stock options refer, is determined to the amount of

euros 3,4 per share which is the closing market price of the share on the date of the Extraordinary
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General Assembly.

On 24/11/2014, the BoD granted 502.550 stock options, which compose the second of the three
waves. The underlying share price to which the granted stock options refer, is determined to the
amount of euros 3,4 per share which is the closing market price of the share on the date of the

Extraordinary General Assembly.

On 23/11/2015, the BoD granted 502.578 stock options, which compose the second of the three
waves. The underlying share price to which the granted stock options refer, is determined to the
amount of euros 3,4 per share which is the closing market price of the share on the date of the

Extraordinary General Assembly.

During period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 no granted option based on the first and second wave of the SOP was

exercised.

During period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 beneficiaries waived their right to exercise 35.895 options which were
granted by the BoD on 25/11/2013, but also beneficiaries waived their right to exercise 6.081 options
which were granted by the BoD on 24/11/2014.

7. Information about Group’s plan of development

After six (2008-2013) consecutive years of declining GDP growth (at constant market prices) and a
weak growth break (2014), Greece returned within the year 2015 to a negative index of GDP change
according to the temporary estimation of Hellenic Statistical Authority of 29/2/2016, the decline is

determined to 0,3 % in an annual base, compared to the zero change anticipations.

Within the extremely adverse conditions such as those formed within the year 2015, the Management
of the Group having wisely forged its long-term planning, managed for the first time in the crisis
period to return within 2015 to profitability and at the same time to complete the turn of the Group to
the purely lucrative operations of Retail Trading segments (IKEA and INTERSPORT & TAF Stores)
without hesitating to disinvest from operations which burdened the Group’s results (NEWLOOK,

Wholesale trading of electrical equipment).

The year 2016, due to the anticipated increase of taxation social security, the pressure for loans
payment of households and the gradual depletion of savings that households have withdrawn from
banks, it is estimated that the consuming ability will be restricted. Therefore, the risk of prolongation

of the recession exists.

The Management of the Group, given that the Group operates in Retail market, especially for Greece,
takes into consideration the risks aforementioned and is extremely vigilant to confront any adverse
changes taking all necessary measures (effective management of operating expenses and assurement
of the financial resources for targeted investments funding not only in Greece but also in foreign
countries). At the same time, within the planning of the year 2016, the Group does not underestimate

current risks arising from the international environment such as the crisis of Middle East, the refugee
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issue and the concerns for the consequences reflected to the global economy by the recession in
China as well as the declining trends of petrol prices as a recording sample of the global economical

development below the expected.

In the year 2016, the Management of the Group, with the expectation that the reforms agreed with
our partners will be implemented in a short time, the outcome of the assessment will be positive and
the stability in the political and economical segment will be embedded and having as a strong
beginning the results of 2015 for the further improvement of all financial figures of the Group, the
Group will proceed to the implementation of its business plan with selective investments in Greece and

foreign countries that the Group operates, as follows:

In the retail trading of sporting goods (INTERSPORT stores) segment, with a current network of one
hundred and six (106) stores in Greece, Romania, Bulgaria, Cyprus and Turkey as well as e-commerce
stores in Greece, Romania and Turkey, within 2016 four (4) new stores are expected to be added to
the existing network and one (1) e-commerce store in Cyprus. After the conduction of the agreement
on 13/11/2014 and the franchise rights commitment regarding the operation of «The Athlete’s Foot»
stores in Greece and Turkey, it is expected that in eight years depth a network of fifty (50) stores will
have been established in those two countries. On 31/12/2015, four (4) TAF stores are operating in
Greece and two (2) in Turkey. By the end of 2016 six (6) new TAF stores are expected to be

operating.

The Group’s company TRADE LOGISTICS S.A. within the year 2015 completed the investment and has
taken control of management of receipts/orders and warehousing of goods for the sporting goods
segment and will gradually serve all companies of the segment. Today TRADE LOGISTICS S.A.
provides logistics services for the support of IKEA stores and INTERSPORT and TAF stores within the
context of gaining benefits from synergies among the companies of the Group. The policy of gaining
benefits from synergies within the Group will continue for the year 2016 for all operations of the

Group.

Education and training of human capital, the constant and fair evaluation in all levels as well as
dedication to the values of the Group - "Integrity"”, "Respect" and "Efficiency" — continue to compose

major comparative advantages through which the Group aims to achieve its goals.

8. Fourlis Group — Major Threats & Uncertainties
Imposition of capital controls in Greece

Banks holiday imposed within the first 20 days of July 2015 and the continuous imposition of
restrictions on capital transactions (capital controls) intensified not only financial uncertainty but also

pressures on the financial system and fiscal aggregates.

Under this context, on July 8" 2015 the Greek Government submitted a request for 3-year financial

assistance to the European Stability Mechanism ("ESM”). On July 12%" 2015 the Euro Summit issued a

13
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relative statement according to which the Greek Government must legislate a first set of measures as
a prerequisite (“prior actions”) for the opening of negotiations aiming to agree and finalize a new
bailout program under the ESM. The Greek Parliament on July 15" and 23" approved part of the prior
actions set by the European Parliament. On July 28" discussions about the preparation of a new
bailout program started and on August 14" the Eurogroup validated the agreement on the 3-year

financial assistance program to Greece, of total amount € 86 billion.

Under the context of the financial environment constantly formed by the aforementioned facts, many
risks arise the more important of which are related to liquidity of the financial system and companies,
collectability of receivables, impairment of assets, income recognition, current debt settlement or/and
satisfaction of terms and financial ratios, deferred tax assets recoverability, valuation of financial
instruments, provisions adequacy and the possibility of continuation of the unrestricted operation of

companies.

Under this context, the Group monitors and continually assesses developments and informs investors
regarding every possible impact that the constantly formed conditions may have on its operation,

financial position and results.
a) Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The management of risk is achieved by the central Treasury department, which operates
under specific guidelines set by the Board of Directors. The Treasury department identifies, determines
and hedges the financial risks in cooperation with the Groups’ subsidiaries. The Board of Directors
provides written instructions and directions for the general management of the risk, as well as specific
instructions for the management of specific risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and

credit risk.
Foreign Exchange Risk:

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from transactions in foreign currencies (RON,
USD, TRY, SEK) with suppliers which invoice the Group in currencies other than the local. The
percentage of the balance of suppliers in currency other than the publication currency (euro) is
15,36% of the total. The Group, in order to minimize the foreign exchange risk, according to the

needs, in certain cases pre - purchases foreign currencies.
Credit risks:

The Group has diminuated the credit risk due to the disinvestment in the Segment of Wholesale
Trading of Electrical Equipment and focuses in retail trading segments where goods are mainly paid in

cash or credit cards discounts.
Interest rate risk/liquidity:

The Group is subject to cash flow risk which in the case of possible variable interest rates fluctuation,
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may affect positively or negatively the cash inflows or outflows related to the Group’s assets or
liabilities.
Cash flow risk is minimized via the availability of adequate credit lines and cash. Also, the Group has

entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS) contracts in order to face interest rate risk.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets:

There are no other commitments and contingent liabilities that can affect the financial condition and

results of the Group.
Fair value of investment property:

The Management of the Group took into consideration the current conditions and considers that fair

value of investment property has not significantly changed since 31/12/2014.
Fair value of assets:

Regarding the investments to subsidiaries in separate Financial Statements, the Management of the
Group, no longer considers that there are impairment indications due to the fact that the subsidiaries
present improved operating results and the current conditions are not expected to affect significantly
their future cash flows. For the exact same reasons the Management of the Group does not consider

that there are impairment indications of its assets.
b) Legal Issues

There are no litigations or legal issues that might have a material impact on the Company and the
Group'’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2015.

9. Social Responsibility

In 2015, the FOURLIS Group successfully completed its planned Social Responsibility Program which
included actions focusing on the support of its People and the Society, as well as on the protection of
the Environment, aiming to create the conditions for a better life for everyone. At the same time,
being an official member of the UN Global Compact since November 2008, the FOURLIS Group
continued to implement actions, practices and policies with devotion to the ten (10) Principles of the
UN Global Compact, relating to human rights, working conditions, environmental protection and anti-

corruption.

Aiming at the support of the Group’s People, the Social Responsibility Department continued the EF
ZIN wellness program, implemented since 2010, aiming to motivate employees towards a healthier
lifestyle. In the context of this program all the Group’s employees in Greece and Cyprus had the
opportunity to participate in a free fat determination examination held at the Group’s companies
premises, in collaboration with experienced dieticians-nutritionists. The 305 employees who
participated in the examination in Greece and Cyprus also had the opportunity to discuss with the

dieticians-nutritionists any matters concerning their weight and their nutrition habits. They also took
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part in a draw for 40 books and fairytales for nutrition, as well as for 5 two-month nutrition programs.

HOUSEMARKET (IKEA), in collaboration with the PanHellenic Association of Women with Breast Cancer
“"ALMA ZOIS"- Thessaloniki Branch, organized a speech regarding prevention and early diagnosis of
breast cancer, open to all the Group’s women employees in Thessaloniki, while the Group’s established
Sports Tournament took place in Cyprus in June and in Greece in October and the FOURLIS Group

employees had the opportunity to compete in their favorite sport games.

Moreover the HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) employees continued to benefit from the weekly balanced diet
menu available in all the HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) staff restaurants. The menu is prepared by
experienced dieticians-nutritionists, based on the daily menu offered in the employees’ restaurants in
the HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) stores.

The Group’s Scholarships program continued for the academic year 2014-2015, giving the opportunity
to 5 students-children of the FOURLIS Group employees in Greece, who study away from their
permanent place of residence and whose families are experiencing financial difficulties, to continue

their studies.

Aiming to the support of the Society, the FOURLIS Group organized, as every year, Voluntary Blood
Donations, in January and June 2015, held at the Group’s premises. 299 employees participated in the
action in Greece and Cyprus. Voluntary Blood Donations were also held at the Group companies in

Bulgaria and Romania, with the participation of 164 employees in total.

The FOURLIS Group continued its social program aiming to support vulnerable social groups and
especially children. Thus, HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) continued the municipal libraries refurbishing
program, which it implements since 2014 in collaboration with the Volunteer Network “Journalists
Acting” in remote areas of Greece. In 2015, HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) refurbished three libraries in total,
in the villages Mouries in Kilkis and Dikaia and Metaxades in Evros, making them hospitable places of
education and culture for children and young people. Moreover the FOURLIS Group, through
HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) continued the public nursery schools support program implemented in
collaboration with the municipal authorities. In 2015, HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) fully refurbishing eight

municipal nursery schools in Athens, Thessaloniki, Thessalia and Epirus.

For a second year in a row, HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) organized the “TASTES OF OUR COUNTRY” events,
aiming to support local production and local societies. The two-day events were hosted at the IKEA
Thessaloniki, Larissa, Ioannina and Athens stores’ parking areas where visitors had the opportunity to
buy or taste local products as well as traditional dishes cooked by famous chefs. On the occasion of
these events, HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) and the FOURLIS Group offered furnishings and other essential
products equal to €23,000 (the equivalent of 5% of the IKEA stores sales on one day of the events in

each city), for the support of the municipal nursery schools refurbishing program in the above areas.

HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) also continued its cooperation with the “BOROUME” Organization, through

which HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) offers, on a daily basis, the meals not consumed in its stores’ restaurants
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in Greece, to Institutions and Organizations which take care of needy people. HOUSEMARKET (IKEA)
also continued to host non-profit organizations in its stores, aiming to give visitors the opportunity to

be informed about their social work and to support them if they wish to.

In October 2015 INTERSPORT implemented its own Social Responsibility Program named “"WE REACH
THE EDGES", in the context of which, since 2011, it visits public primary schools in remote areas of
Greece and offers high specification equipment that can be used in training, athletic events, team

ports and P.E. classes in general.

The INTERSPORT team was accompanied by renowned athletes who spoke to the children about the
benefits of sports and healthy diet in their lives. In 2015, INTERSPORT visited 26 schools in the

prefectures of Ilia, Arkadia and Messinia and more than 3.000 children.

In December 2015, just before the Christmas holidays, the FOURLIS Group employees in Greece and
Cyprus collected and offered a total of 126 big boxes and 54 bags full of food and other necessary
products to Organizations and Institutions in Attica, Thessaloniki, Larissa, Ioannina, Komotini, Rhodes,

Patra, Chania, Heraklion and Cyprus.

In February 2015 HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) Cyprus completed and delivered three kitchens in primary
schools, supporting the "COOK and OFFER” program implemented by the “SOPHIA FOR CHILDREN"
Foundation in Cyprus all-day schools. In the context of the program, unemployed mothers of children

who study at the schools, voluntarily cook, ensuring all children’s meals throughout the school year.

In 2015 HOUSEMARKET (IKEA) Bulgaria continued its cooperation with UNICEF under which it
undertook the refurbishing of education, entertainment, accommodation and protection infrastructures

for children and young people.

Recognizing the urgent need to protect the environment and to save natural resources, the FOURLIS

Group continued its recycling and energy saving programs in all the Group’s premises.

Meanwhile, the operation of the photovoltaic park at the TRADE LOGISTICS innovative and fully
automated logistics center continued. The operation of the photovoltaic park began in March 2013 and

has an average production capacity of 1.380 MWh / year.

Finally, in June 2015, the Social Responsibility Department issued the Social Responsibility Report
2014, which was the sixth Report issued by the Social Responsibility Department, since the beginning

of its operation.

10. Related parties transactions

As Related parties are considered the Company, the subsidiary companies, the associate companies
and joint ventures, the Management and the first line managers and their connected individuals and
legal entities (IAS 24). The major transactions, which were eliminated for the purposes of
consolidation of financial statements between Group companies, are mainly selling goods among

companies in the same segment and logistics services - supply, maintenance - repairs and
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management fee.

Detailed information on the related parties’ receivables/ payables for the Group and the Company for
the period 31/12/2015 and 31/12/2014 is analysed as follows (all amounts in th. euros):

FOURLIS TRADE SA

HOUSE MARKET SA
INTERSPORT SA

SERVICE ONE SA

TRADE LOGISTICS SA

GENCO BULGARIA
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD
H.M. HOUSE MARKET (CYPRUS) LTD
SPEEDEX SA

RENTIS SA

HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD
GENCO TRADE SRL
INTERSPORT ATLETIK

TRADE STATUS SA

Total

FOURLIS TRADE SA

HOUSE MARKET SA
INTERSPORT SA

SERVICE ONE SA

TRADE LOGISTICS SA

GENCO BULGARIA
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD
H.M. HOUSE MARKET (CYPRUS) LTD
SPEEDEX SA

RENTIS SA

HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD
GENCO TRADE SRL
INTERSPORT ATLETIK

TRADE STATUS SA
Management Members

Total

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 31122014 31122015 311212014
0 0 6 79
0 0 4] 188
0 0 606 267
0 0 1" 9
0 0 13 35
0 0 16 37
0 0 3 2
0 0 14 8
7 0 7 0
0 0 2 2
0 0 25 15
0 0 4 22
0 0 14 23
160 108 157 104
167 108 877 790
0 0 0 0
0 0 125 5
0 0 0 7
0 0 0 0
0 0 1 1
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
137 152 1 2
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
1 0 0 0
42 0 0 0
180 152 127 15

Third Parties transactions for the period 1/1 to 31/12/2015 and for the period 1/1 to 31/12/2014 are

analysed as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue m 100 3.986 3.660
Other operating income 65 34 746 598
Total 176 1356 4.732 4.258
GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Administrative expenses 79 88 a8
Distribution expenses 308 KA ) 0
Other operating expenses 0 0 0 0
Total 387 407 5 8

During the years 2015 and 2014 the following transactions have been applied among FOURLIS
HOLDINGS SA and the subsidiaries of the Group:

GROuUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenue 24,724 17.432 3.884 3.660
Cost of Sales 16.364 13.736 3.460 3.208
Other Income 1.984 1435 725 508
Administrative axpenses 4682 3.689 12 29
Destribution expenses 2.598 8.635 0 0

GROUP COMPANY

31122015 311272014 317122015 311272014

Trade recevables 8.769 8.045 702 686
Inventory 272 213 0 0
Creditors 5.368 5.545 126 13

11. Human Recourses of the Group

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31, December 2015 and 31, December 2014 was
3.760 and 3.710 respectively. The total number of employees of the Company for the same reporting

periods set above was at 86 and 76 respectively.

12. Management members’ transactions and remuneration

During periods 1/1 — 31/12/2015 and 1/1 — 31/12/2014, transactions and fees with the management

members were as follows:
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2015 2014 2015 2014

Transactions and fees of management 2 658 2 805 488 491
membars

13. Treasury shares
On 31/12/2015, the Company does not hold treasury shares and no treasury shares program is
currently held.

14. Explanatory report — information according to article 4 par. 7 of Law
3556/2007

a. The Company’s share capital

The Company’s share capital amounts to euros 54.561.784,54 and consists of 50.992.322 nominal
shares with a nominal value of euro 1,07 each (31/12/2014: 50.992.322).

All the shares are common nominal shares, listed on Athens Stock Exchange (category: Medium
Capitalization). Each share entitles to one vote, with an exception of the number of own shares that

do not have the right to vote.
The shareholders’ responsibility is limited to the nominal value of the shares that they own.
b. Restrictions as to the transfer of the Company’s shares

The transfer of shares of the Company is made as prescribed by law and there are no restrictions as to

their transfer by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

c. Significant direct or indirect shareholdings as prescribed by articles 9 - 11 of Law
3556/2007

On 31/12/2015, the following shareholders owned more than 5% of the voting shares of the

Company:
e KEM DAFNI A. FOURLIS: (17,621%)
e  MITICA LIMITED: (5,883%)

FIDELITY INVESTMENT FUND — EUROPEAN (5,511%)

e HORIZON GROWTH FUND N.V. (5,148%)

d. Preference shares

The Company does not have any preference shares.
e. Restrictions to voting rights

There are no restrictions to voting rights arising from the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.
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f. Shareholder agreements resulting in restrictions transfer of shares or to their voting

rights

The Company is not aware of any Shareholder agreements resulting in restrictions to transfer of

shares or to their voting rights as it is prescribed by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

g. Rules for the appointment and replacement of members of the Board of Directors and
the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation which differ to those prescribed by
Codified Law 2190/1920.

The rules for the appointment and replacement of members of the Board of Directors and the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation do not differ to those prescribed by Codified Law
2190/1920.

h. The Board of Directors’ or of several of its members, roles for the issue of new shares or
the shares buy back in accordance with article 16 of Codified Law 2190/1920

1) According to Art 13 par 1 (b) of Law 2190/ 1920 and the Art 4 par. 1 of Articles of Incorporation,
during the first 5 years from the Shareholders General Assembly resolution, the Board of Directors has
the right, based on a majority of 2/3 of total members, to: a) Increase Share Capital in total or
partially through the issue of new shares for an amount that cannot exceed 1/2 of the paid in share
capital at the date that Board was awarded the aforementioned right and b) Issue Corporate bonds
that will be converted to shares for an amount that cannot exceed 1/2 of the paid in share capital. In
this case the provisions of paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of article 3a of Law 2190/ 1920 are implemented.
The Share Capital increases according to the above do not constitute an amendment of the Articles of
Incorporation. The aforementioned General Assembly decision has to be published in accordance with
Article 7b of Law 2190/ 1920.

The authority of the Board of Directors can be renewed from the General Assembly with a decision
that has to be published in accordance with Art. 7b of Law 2190/ 1920, for a time spread that will not

exceed 5 years, for every renewal and its validity commences after each 5 years period end.

In case that the Reserves exceed 1/4 of the paid in capital then for a Share Capital increase a decision
of the Shareholders General Assembly is obligatory along with an amendment of the corresponding
article of Articles of Incorporation. All the above decisions are valid with a presence greater than the

2/3 of the paid in capital representatives.

In case of non presence of the 2/3, the 1st Repeated General Assembly will take place within 20 days
from the General Assembly date was cancelled. The 1st Repeated General Assembly has to be
announced 10 days before. The 1st Repeated General Assembly is valid if at minimum, the 1/2 of the

paid in capital representatives are physically present.

In case of a non presence of the 1/2, the 2nd Repeated General Assembly will take place within 20

days from the 1st Repeated General Assembly date was cancelled. The 2nd Repeated General
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Assembly has to be announced 10 days before. The 2nd Repeated General Assembly is valid if at

minimum, the 1/5 of the paid in share capital representatives are physically present.

These decisions of the General Assembly of shareholders are considered by a majority of two thirds

(2/3) of the votes represented therein.

2) The A’ Repeated Annual General Assembly of shareholders of" FOURLIS Holdings SA " on
30/6/2008, acting under the provisions of paragraph 13 of Article 13 and paragraphs 3 and 4 of Article
29 and paragraph 2 of Article 31 of Law 2190/ 1920, implemented a stock option plan (Stock Options)
- hereinafter "Program" - to executives of the Company and its affiliated companies within the
meaning of paragraph 5 of article 42e of this Act, and authorized the Board of Directors, to regulate
procedural matters and detail. The Board of Directors, under the terms of the plan and the law gives
to recipients, who exercised their right, certificates of right to obtain shares and issue and deliver the
shares in these recipients, increasing the share capital of the Company certifying the capital increase.
These increases in share capital are not amendments to the Articles of Incorporation. The Board of
Directors during the last months of the fiscal year within which capital increases occurred, as
determined above, must adjust, with its decision, the article of Incorporation on the capital, so as to
predict the amount of capital, as shown after these increases, made public in compliance with Article
7b.

3) The Annual General Assembly of shareholders of "FOURLIS Holding SA" of 11/6/2010 decided, in
accordance with Article 16 of Law 2190/ 1920, to approve the purchase from the company's shares
buy back, until the number of 2.547.646 shares (5% of share capital paid in) within 24 months of
approval, namely 11/06/2012, with a minimum acquisition price of one euro (1.00 euro) per share and
maximum twenty euro (20.00) per share in accordance with the Article 16 of L. 2190/ 1920 and
authorized the Board of Directors to determine, but within the above framework, the exact timing,

number and price for acquisition of such shares.

4) The Annual General Assembly of shareholders of “"FOURLIS Holding SA" of 15/6/2012 decided, in
accordance with Article 16 of Law 2190/ 1920, to approve the purchase from the company's shares
buy back, until the number of 2.549.616 shares (5% of share capital paid in) within 24 months of
approval, namely 15/6/2014, with a minimum acquisition price of fifty cents (0.50 euros) per share
and maximum fifteen euro (15.00) per share, in accordance with Article 16 of L. 2190/ 1920 and
authorized the Board of Directors to determine, but within the above framework, the exact timing,

number and price for acquisition of such shares.

Related to the program on the issue of new shares and the share buybacks for the period 1/1 to
31/12/2015, more details listed above, in the Board of Directors Report in paragraph 6 Stock Option
Plan.

5) The Extraordinary Annual General Assembly of shareholders of " FOURLIS Holdings SA " of
27/9/2013, acting under the provisions of paragraph 13 of Article 13 and paragraphs 3 and 4 of Article
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29 and paragraph 2 of Article 31 of Law 2190/ 1920, decided the implementation of a stock option
plan - hereinafter "Program" - to executives of the Company and its affiliated companies within the
meaning of paragraph 5 of article 42e of this Act and authorized the Board of Directors, to regulate
procedural matters and detail. The Board of Directors, under the terms of the plan and the law gives
to recipients, who exercised their right, certificates of right to obtain shares and issue and deliver the
shares in these recipients, increasing the share capital of the Company certifying the capital increase.
These increases in share capital are not amendments to articles of Incorporation. The Board of
Directors during the last month of the fiscal year within which capital increases occurred, as
determined above, must adjust, with its decision, the article of Incorporation on the capital, so as to
predict the amount of capital, as shown after these increases, made public in compliance with Article
7b.

i. Significant agreements that the issuer has entered into, which come into force, are
amended or terminate in the event that there are changes in control due to listing of

the Company on the stock exchange

There are no significant agreements the issuer has entered into, which come into force, are amended
or terminate in the event that there are changes in control due to listing of the Company on the stock

exchange.

j- Agreements that the issuer has entered into with members of the Board of Directors or
its employees, which provide for indemnity in the event of termination or redundancy

without cause due to the listing of the Company on the stock exchange.

There are no agreements that the issuer has entered into with members of the Board of Directors or
its employees, which provide for indemnity in the event of termination or redundancy without cause

due to the listing of the Company on the stock exchange.

15. Corporate Governance Statement for the period 1/1 —-31/12/2015

According to Law 3873/2010 article 2, paragraph 2, the Board of Directors declares the following:

a) Reference on the Corporate Governance Code which the company is coming under or has

voluntarily decided to comply with and the website that can be found.

The Company has decided (Board of Directors decision on 28/2/2011) to voluntarily comply with the
Greek Code of Corporate Governance that was drafted at the initiative of SEV for Listed Companies
and was later modified for the first time by the Greek Council of Corporate Governance (GCCG) on
28/06/2013. GCCG was founded in 2012 and is the outcome of the collaboration between Greek
Exchanges and SEV. Its purpose is to monitor the implementation of the Greek Code of Corporate
Governance from greek companies and generally to operate as a specialized body for the expansion of
the principles of the corporate governance and the incessant growth of Greek market’s credibility

among international and domestic investors.
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The GCCG is a member of the European Corporate Codes Network and expert contributor of World
Bank for the exhibition Doing Business for the indicator Protecting Investors (www.doingbusiness.org).
The composition of the 15-member Board, as well as of the Committees and Working Groups of GCCG
follows the principle of diversity. Specialists from Greece and abroad participate from different
segments such as: audit, investment, business, supervision, legal, consulting, banking and stock

market.

In the composition of the 15-member of the GCCG the Chairman of the BoD of the Company
participates while executives of the Group participate in the Committees and Working Groups of the
GCCG. The Greek Code of Corporate Governance is posted on the websites of the Greek Council of

Corporate Government at: http://www.esed.org.gr.

The purpose of Greek Code of Corporate Governance is the constant improvement of the greek
institutional framework and general business environment, as well as the increase of investors’
confidence not only towards the sum of listed companies but also each one of them and the

broadening of attraction horizons of investment capitals.

The Corporate Governance Greek Code contains two types of provisions: “general principles”, which
are addressed to all companies, listed or not and “special practices” which only refer to listed
companies. The purpose of General principles is to provide a general framework within which
principles can be addressed and more issues of corporate governance can be resolved, either of a
listed company or not. Each principle is followed by one or more specific practices that further develop
the general principles and guide their implementation within the regulatory and ownership structure of
listed companies. The Code follows the approach of compliance or explanation and has the following
demands of the listed companies which chose to implement it: the disclosure of their intention and
either their compliance with all the specific practices of the Code or their explanation of the reasons

leading them not to comply with these specific practices.
The general principles of the Code cover the following topics:

¢ Role and responsibilities of the Board

e  Size and composition of the Board

e Role and profile of the chairman of the Board
e Duties and conduct of Board members

e  Nomination of Board members

e  Functioning of the Board

e  Board evaluation

e Internal audit system

e Level and structure of remuneration

e  Communication with shareholders
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The General Assembly of shareholders

b) Reference to the corporate governance practices implemented by the Company beyond the

requirements of the Law and the website that can be found

Whenever Corporate Governance Code refers to existing, mandatory legal rules present tense is used

to distinguish these requirements from the voluntary practices of the code.

Indicative, the following Corporate Governance practices applied by the company in addition to the
provisions of the Law (Law 3016/2002, Law 3693/2008 ar. 37 and Common Law 2190/1920):

The Board of Directors consists of seven (7) to fifteen (15) Board Members. The BOD should
comprise a majority of non-executive members (including independent non-executive members)
and at least two (2) executive members. At least one third (1/3) of the Board Members consists
of independent non - executive members, who are free of material conflict of interest with the
company and do not have any close ties with the management, controlling shareholders or the
company.

The Board of Directors is assisted by a competent, suitably qualified and experienced company
Secretary who shall attend all its meetings. All Board Members have access to the services of the
company Secretary, whose role is to provide practical support to the Chairman and other Board
members, both as a group and individually, and ensure that the Board complies with internal

rules and relevant laws and regulations.

The Board of Directors has established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee which meets
sufficiently regularly and ensures an efficient and transparent process for both the nomination of
Board members and the formulation of policy and principles of the company regarding the

remuneration of executive Board members and key executives.

The responsibilities of the Chairman are clearly established by the Board of Directors, clearly
distinguished from those of the Chief Executive Officer and are reflected in the Internal

Regulation of the company.

The Board of Directors, supported by its Audit Committee, sets appropriate policies on internal
control and ensures that the system is functioning effectively. The Board of Directors also defines
the process to be adopted for the monitoring of the effectiveness of internal control. This
encompasses both the scope and frequency of the reports it receives from the internal audit
services and reviews during the year, as well as the process for the annual assessment of internal

control.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors should be available to meet shareholders of the company
to discuss eventual governance concerns. The Chairman of the Board of Directors should ensure

that the views of the shareholders are communicated to the whole Board.

The Audit Committee ensures the functioning of the internal control service according to

international professional standards

25

Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

c) Description of the main characteristics of internal control and risk management of the company in

relation to the process of preparation of financial statements

The company has developed and implements a process for issuing the financial statements
(consolidated and separate) and the Financial Report. The Group companies record their transactions
in their information systems and through automated procedures the consolidation application is
updated. Crosschecking of data is performed and is reviewed (intra - group transactions, receivables
and payables, etc.). Elimination and consolidation entries are recorded and the financial statements
with the associate notes are developed. After the completion of audit procedures, the Financial Report

that includes the financial statements is submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

The main characteristics of the internal control and risk management systems employed by the
Company in connection with the process of preparation of the financial statements and the Financial

Report are the following:

e Adequate knowledge, skills and availability of personnel involved with clearly separated roles and
areas of responsibility.

e Existence of recorded and updated procedures related to the issuance of financial results.

e  Regular review of accounting principles and policies.

e  Existence of control activities relevant to information systems used.

e  Regular communication between the external auditors, Executive Management and the Audit

Committee.

e Regular meetings for validation and registration of the significant estimations affecting the

financial statements.

e Existence of risk management methodology and documentation for its implementation.

Presentation of the results of risk management to the Board of Directors.
e  Existence of unique Chart of Accounts for all Group companies and centralized management.

e  On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, annual evaluation by the Board of Directors of
the internal control and risk management systems applied for the issuance of financial

statements.

d) Additional Information pursuant to sections c), d), f) g) and h) of Article 10 par.1 of the 2004/25/EK

Directive of the 21 of April 2004, regarding the Takeover Bid, since the Company is subject to

the Directive
During the year no Takeover Bids or Business Combination took place.

e) Information about the General Shareholders Assembly, mode of operation, description of the rights

of the shareholders and how these can be exercised

The convocation of General Assembly of Shareholders of the Company is in accordance with the Law
2190/ 1920, as in force.

26
Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF COMPANIES

Regarding the operating method of the General Assembly, the Company follows the practices
mentioned below:

e The Shareholders of the Company are informed in advance and up to schedule, for the

convocation of the General Assembly, in accordance with the Law.

e The Company publicizes on its website the Invitation of the General Assembly, the representation
mode of the Shareholders, the deadlines and the mode of exercise of their rights as well as the

voting results for each topic of the agenda.

e The Company publicizes on time on its website Explanatory Note regarding the agenda, the
relevant proposals by Board of Directors, the required quorum and majority for the approval of
the proposals. The Explanatory Note is also available in hard copy in Company’s Head Office and

is distributed to the Shareholders entering in the General Assembly.

e Ensuring that each shareholder is able to participate at the General Assembly either by wording

their views or by submitting their questions.

The Company, according Law 3884/ 2010, in its first adaption at the convocation of the Annual
General Assembly of 2011, takes all measures for the consistent process and to ensure the
Shareholders rights.

The responsibilities of the General Assembly are mentioned in the Extract of the Article of

Incorporation of the Company which is posted on its website: http://www.fourlis.gr

f) Composition and functioning of the Board and any other administrative, management or supervisory

bodies or committees of the company

The Board, its independent members and all members of Audit Committee, are elected by the Annual
General Assembly of shareholders held on 15/6/2012. The term of Board members in accordance with
the articles of Incorporation and of members of Audit Committee, ends during the first half of 2017,

when the Ordinary General Assembly of Shareholders will elect new Board.

According the decision of the Board on 27/5/2014, the independent non-executive member Mr Eftyxios
Vasilakis was elected as Independent Vice-President of the Board of Directors and the Committee of

Nomination and Remuneration was reconstituted.

After the aforementioned replacement the new BoD was constituted as follows:

Chairman, Executive Member, Member of Nomination and Remuneration | Vassilis S. Fourlis
Committee

Vice — Chairman, Executive Member, Member of Nomination and | Dafni A. Fourlis
Remuneration Committee

Independent Vice — Chairman, Independent Non — Executive Member, | Eftichios Th. Vassilakis
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

CEO, Executive Member Apostolos D. Petalas
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Director, Executive Member, Corporate Social Responsibility Director Lida S. Fourlis

Director, Non — Executive Member, Audit Committee Head Ioannis Ev. Brebos

Director, Independent Non - Executive Member, Member of Nomination | Pavlos K. Triposkiadis

and Remuneration Committee

Director, Independent Non — Executive Member, Member of Audit | Ioannis K. Papaioannou

Committee

Director, Independent Non — Executive Member, Member of Nomination | Ioannis A. Kostopoulos

and Remuneration Committee

Short CV’s of the members of the Board of Directors as well as of the Company’s Secretary Mr Ioannis

Zakopoulos are presented on the Company’s website: (http://www.fourlis.gr)

The Articles of Incorporation provide for the Board of Directors to be composed of 3 to 9 members.

The Company has elected its Board with the maximum permitted number of Directors to ensure the

diversity of gender, age, knowledge, qualification and experience serving the objectives of the

Company as well as the balance between executive and non-executive members.

The main responsibilities of the Board of Directors include:

Approving the overall long - term strategy and operational goals of the Company.

Approving annual budgets and business plans and deciding on major capital expenditures,

acquisitions and divestitures.

Selecting and replacing, if necessary, the executive leadership of the company and overseeing

succession planning.

Monitoring the performance of senior management, and aligning executive remuneration with the

longer term interests of the company and its shareholders.

Ensuring the existence of risk management and internal audit system and annually examining the
main potential risks facing the Company in addition to the consideration of internal audit system

following the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accounts, financial reporting systems and public

disclosures, as well as the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and risk management.

Vigilance regarding existing and potential conflicts of interest between both the Company and its
senior management, board members or major shareholders (including shareholders with direct or
indirect authority to form or influence the composition and behavior of the Board) and
appropriate management of such conflicts. For this purpose, the Board adopts supervisory

process of transactions with the interests of transparency and protection of corporate interests.

Ensuring that there is a satisfactory process for monitoring the company’s compliance with

relevant laws and regulations.
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e Deciding on and monitoring the effectiveness of the company’s governance processes including

its system of decision - making and delegation of authorities and duties to other key executives.

e  Formulating, disseminating and implementing key values and principles of conduct governing the

company’s relations with its shareholders.

e Approving Internal Regulation Charter, Corporate Governance Code, Code of Conduct and their

revisions.

e Approving equal opportunities and diversity policy, including gender balance between board

members.

Company’s policy of equal opportunities and diversity is posted on its website (http://www.fourlis.gr)

and briefly includes the following:

FOURLIS Group is committed to provide equal opportunities for all employees and qualified applicants
for employment, at all levels of hierarchy, regardless of race, color, religion, national origin, gender,
sexual orientation, age, disability, marital status, or any other characteristic protected by law. FOURLIS

Group expressly prohibits any discrimination or harassment based on these factors.

Affirmative action will be taken to ensure that all employment decisions, including but not limited to
those involving recruitment, hiring, promotion, training, compensation, benefits, transfer, discipline,

and discharge, are free from unlawful discrimination.

The Group encourages a safe and healthy work environment, free from discrimination, harassment
and retaliation. All employment-related decisions are based on an individual qualification, performance

and behavior, or other legitimate business considerations.

FOURLIS Group will provide reasonable accommodation to otherwise qualified employees with a
disability consistent with the law. What constitutes a reasonable accommodation depends on the

circumstances and thus will be addressed by the Group on a case-by-case basis.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Group sees increasing diversity
at the Board & Executive Officers level as an essential element in supporting attainment of its strategic

objectives and its sustainable development.

Certain minimum qualifications for Board members & Executive Officers candidates should possess,
including strong values and discipline, high ethical standards, a commitment to full participation to the
Board and its committees. Candidates should possess individual skills, experience and demonstrated

abilities that help meet the current needs to the Group.

Board & Executive Officers’ diversity is based on a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge

and length of service.

All Board & Executive Officers appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be

considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Below, data on the proportion of each gender and age of Board members and Senior Executives are

presented:
Board of Directors HC Total %
Male 7 78%
Female 2 22%
Grand Total 9 100%

The age range of the members of the BoD varies from 48 to 75 years old.

Executive Officers HC Total %

Male 27 79%
Female 7 21%
Grand Total 34 100%

The age range of the Executive Officers varies from 39 to 61 years old.

The policy of conducting transactions between subsidiaries of the Company and related parties aims at
the timely information of the desired transaction and approval obtaining before its implementation.
The policy applies to all new transactions exceeding the amount of € 20.000 per type of transaction
annually. In case of existing transactions, approval is required for substantial modification of contract
terms in force (new customer, new transaction, expansion of the duration, credit terms amendment,

pricing conditions amendment etc).

The Board shall meet with the necessary frequency so as to effectively perform its duties. At the
beginning of each calendar year, the Board adopts a meeting agenda and a 12-plan action plan, which

may be revised depending on the needs of the Company.

The evaluation of the Board and its Committees takes place annually through questionnaires
completed by the members of the Board, which are then processed by the Company’s Secretary and

presented to the Board at its November meeting.

The policy and principles of the Company regarding the form of executive board members’
remuneration as well as the method of calculation of board members’ variable remuneration, including

quantitative and qualitative criteria taken into consideration, are summarized as follows:

Group Compensation & Benefits Policy

Compensation is a fundamental component of employment and one of the most critical HR
management policies. With the term "Compensation” we intend: base salary, bonus or incentive plans

(if the position is eligible to such incentives) and benefits.

FOURLIS Group has established and communicates transparent and clear principles by which
Executive BoD members, are paid with the aim to ensure fairness and equity. The Compensation

Policy of FOURLIS Group is based on objectives and up-to-date job descriptions, effective job
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evaluation and performance management.

All compensation and benefits are shown in the offer letter and/ or the employment contract; there
are no unlisted, “off-agreement” incentives or benefits allowed. Compensation includes base salary,
management upon objectives, stock option plan and other incentives in kind. The Group does not
tolerate any form of discrimination, as described in the Group Equal Opportunities and Diversity Policy.
All employment-related decisions, including decisions on compensation, are based on an individual

qualification, performance and behaviour, or other legitimate business considerations.

Salary Ranges

FOURLIS Group collaborates with well-known consultancy firms, with international experience, in order
to get the appropriate market benchmarking on Compensation & Benefits trends and establish its own
salary range. The market benchmarking is conducted once a year to ensure that the Group policy is in
line with the employment market practices for each targeted position within that market, as well as to

ensure internal equity.

Placement on Salary Range

FOURLIS Group Compensation policy has established the criteria for new hires/ existing Executive BoD
Members placement on the salary range. The criteria include the new hires/ existing Executive BoD

Members experience and specific skill sets related to the position.

Criteria for Salary Increases

In order to ensure fair and equitable compensation practices, FOURLIS Group has clearly established,
communicate and apply decision-making criteria for salary increases. Decisions on salary increases are

based on cost of living and performance (merit).

As a guideline for management, the performance ratings should normally follow a typical distribution
(gauss/bell curve), depending on the maturity of each FOURLIS Group Company. The Group HR
Function provides the appropriate distribution to the Group Companies. The typical distribution
guideline is recommended in order to fairly apply the performance system to all individuals and to
maintain the approved company budget. Merit increase pay out may change from year to year and are

determined by how successful the Group Companies have been as a profit making business.

Salary Review Timing

Salary reviews are conducted annually in conjunction with performance reviews.

Bonus and Incentive Pay

The Management by Objectives is an optional reward, decided annually and is awarded each time by

the decision of the Group Management, which chooses its level, size and way of implementation.

Under this decision, the program “Management by Objectives” (MBO) is based on Group, Company

and/ or Personal (departmental) Objectives, which will be accomplished during each year.
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The MBO program is designed to strengthen our Group’s strategy, support the view that we should

reward contribution, and is targeted on:

e Participants motivation on Objectives’ achievement

e Contribution on Group, Company & Personal/ departmental final results
e Teamwork spirit

Stock Option Plan

The General Assembly of the Shareholders of Fourlis Holdings S.A. targets through the SOP program,
to attract, maintain and motivate the Executive BoD Members, since through this program, the
participants derive direct interest as shareholders of the company and they will connect their
performance with the future performance of the Company, as this is mirrored to the share price

increase.

Other Incentives

The FOURLIS Group following the market trends, in order to further motivate its Executives BoD
Members has in place a benefit in kind policy which includes: health and life insurance plan, pension

scheme, company car as well as some other minor benefits.

The remuneration of the Board of Directors is approved by the Annual General Assembly of

shareholders.

The functioning of the Board of Directors is detailed in the Board Internal Regulation. The Board
Internal Regulation contains the following sections:

e  Election of the Board

e  Board members

e  Establishment of independence of candidates or current members of the Board
e  Term of the Board

e  Establishment of the Board as a body

e Responsibilities of the Board

e Duties and conduct of Board members

e  Board committees

e  Prohibitions

e  Board Meetings

e Quorum of the Board and decision making

e  Support of the Board

e  Minutes of Board Meetings

The function of the Board is supported by two committees: the Audit Committee and the Nomination
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and Remuneration Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the General Assembly of shareholders (Article 37 of Law
3693/2008). The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are the following:

e  Monitoring the financial reporting process and credibility of financial statements,

e  Supervision of any formal announcement regarding the financial performance of the Company
and examination of key points of financial statements which contain significant judgments and

estimations in terms of management,

e  Monitoring the effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring the

proper working of the internal audit function,
e Ensuring the independence of internal audit and evaluation of the head of internal audit,

e Examining cases of interest conflicts during transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries with

related parties and submitting such reports to the board,
e  Monitoring the progress of statutory audit of separate and consolidated financial statements,

e Reviewing and monitoring issues related to the existence and maintenance of objectivity and
independence of the external auditor, especially regarding the supply of non-auditing services by
the statutory auditor or the audit firm. Objectivity and independence of external auditor in cases
of providing non auditing services is secured by strict delimitation and extremely limited use of

services provided by auditors not participating in the regular audit of the Group’s companies.

The function of the Audit Committee is detailed in the Corporate Governance Code and the Audit
Committee Charter approved by the Board and posted on the website of the Company
(http://www.fourlis.gr). The Audit Committee since its inception (early 2003) and by the end of 2015
held 50 meetings (4 meetings/ year). Each regular meeting of the year 2015 was attended by
Executives of the Financial Department of the Company and by the external auditors of the company.

The minutes of the Audit Committee are distributed and approved in the next meeting of the BoD.

The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to lead the procedure of
submission of nominations for the election of Board and submits proposals to the Board of Directors
their remuneration. The annual ordinary meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
held in October of every year before the configuration of budget of the next year. The minutes of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are distributed and approved in the next meeting of the
BoD.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

e  Proposal submissions to the Board of Directors concerning the remuneration of each individual

executive Board Member, including bonuses, incentive payments and share options.

e Reviewing and making proposals to the Board of Directors on the total annual package of variable

(beyond salary) compensation in the Company.
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Reviewing and proposing to the Board of Directors (and, via the Board of Directors, the General

Assembly of shareholders, when required) on the stock option and/ or share award programs.

Proposing targets for performance — related compensation or targets related to stock-options or

granting of shares.

Reviewing regularly the salary of executive Board Members and other contractual terms, including

severance payments and pension arrangements.
Submitting proposals to the Board on any business policy related to remuneration.

Reviewing the annual remuneration report.

The function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is detailed in

the Charter of the Committee approved by the Board of Directors and posted on the web site of the

Company (http://www.fourlis.gr). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter contains the

following sections:

The purpose of the Committee

Members and term of the Committee

Duties and responsibilities of the Committee
Functioning of the Committee

Disclosure of the Committee Charter

g) If the company deviates from the Corporate Governance Code that applies, the Corporate

Governance Statement includes a description of that deviation with reference to the relevant

parts of the Corporate Governance Code and provides explanation for the deviation. If the

company does not comply with certain provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, the

Corporate Governance Statement includes a reference to the provision that is not applied and

explains the reasons for that deviation.

The Company complies with the Greek Code of Corporate Governance with minor deviations that are

presented and explained in the following table.

Greek Code of Corporate Governance
(first modification June 2013)

Explanation/ Justification of deviations
from special practices of the Corporate
Governance Greek Code

Board members must be elected by shareholders at
a maximum term of four (4) years (specific practice
5.1 Nomination of Board Members)

An amendment on Articles of Incorporation is
required, which is a decision of the General
Assembly. It will be proposed as a change by
the termination of the term of the members of
the current Board of Directors.

The evaluation of the performance of the Board
and its Committees should take place at least every
2 years in line with a clearly established procedure.
The evaluation exercise should be led by the
Chairman and its results discussed by the Board.
The Chairman should act on the results of the

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors
include the assessment of its Committees. For
the evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board, the Company has ended to the use of
questionnaires completed by the members of
the Board, which will be processed by the
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Greek Code of Corporate Governance
(first modification June 2013)

Explanation/ Justification of deviations
from special practices of the Corporate
Governance Greek Code

performance evaluation by addressing the
weaknesses of the Board. The Board should also
evaluate the performance of its Chairman. This
should be led by the independent Vice - Chairman,
if appointed, or by another non - executive Board
member (specific practice 7.1, Board evaluation).

The non - executive Board members should
convene periodically without the executive
members in order to evaluate the latter
performance and discuss their remuneration
(specific practice 7.2, Board evaluation).

company’s Secretary and presented annually
to the Board during the last meeting of the
year.

If stock options are granted, they shouldnt mature
in less than three (3) years from grant date
(special practice 1.2, Level and structure of
remuneration).

The stock option plan (SOP program) in force,
provides maturity to stock options in less than
three (3) years from grant date. In case of a
new SOP program, there will be a revision of
this specific special practice.

Executive Board members’ contracts should provide
that the Board may demand full or partial recovery
of any bonuses awarded on the basis of restated
financial statements of previous years or otherwise
erroneous financial data used to calculate such
bonuses (specific practice 1.3, Level and structure
of remuneration).

The existing contracts of the Company do not
include this term, but a specific reference has
been made to the last revision of the Code of
Conduct distributed to all the employees of the
Company.

16. Subsequent Events

Concluding the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and taking into account both the funding

needs of development projects of the Company and the general economic environment, we propose to

the Annual General Assembly of Shareholders for the year 2016, not to distribute any dividend.

This Report, the Annual Financial Statements of the year 2015, the Notes on the Annual Financial

Statements along with the Auditors Report, they are published at the Group’s web site, address:

http://www.fourlis.gr.
Maroussi, March 7" 2016

The Board of Directors
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The annual Financial Statements (consolidated and separate) included in pages 39 to 109 are in
accordance with the IFRS as applied in the European Union and approved by the Board of Directors of

“Fourlis Holdings SA” on 7/3/2016 and are signed by the following:

Chairman of the Board of Directors CEO
Vassilis St. Fourlis Apostolos D. Petalas
ID No. S - 700173 ID No. AK - 021139
Finance Manager Controlling & Planning Chief Accountant

. . Sotirios I. Mitrou
Maria I. Theodoulidou ID No. AI — 557890

ID No. T - 134715 Ch. Acct. Lic. No. 30609 A Class
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THIS REPORT HAS BEEN TRANSLATED FROM THE GREEK ORIGINAL VERSION

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of «<FOURLIS HOLDING S.A.»
Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of FOURLIS
HOLDING S.A. (“the Company”), which comprise the separate and consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the separate and consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate and
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and for such internal controls as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate and consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards of Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the separate and consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the separate and consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate and
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
separate and consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the separate and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.
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Opinion

ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS) Tel: +30 210 2886 000
Certified Auditors — Accountants S.A.  Fax:+30 210 2886 905
Chimarras 8B 151 25, Marousi ey.com

Greece

In our opinion, the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. as at December 31, 2015, and of
their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a) (a) The Directors’ Report includes a statement of corporate governance which contains the

information required by paragraph 3d article 43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) (b) We confirm that the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the
accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements and complete in the context of the
requirements of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

Athens, March 7, 2016

The Certified Auditor Accountant

PANAGIOTIS PAPAZOGLOU
S.0.E.L. R.N. 16631
ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS)

CERTIFIED AUDITORS ACCOUNTANTS S.A.

CHIMARRAS 8B
151 25 MAROUSSI
S.0.E.L. R.N. 107

EY

Building a better
WOork Mg wWor i
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Statement of Financial Position (Consolidated and Separate)
as at December 31, 2015 and at December 31,2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment
Investment Property

Intangible Assets

Investments in affillates and associates
Long Term receivables

Deferred Taxes

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventory

Income tax receivable
Trade recelvables
Other recelvables

Cash & cash equivalent

Investments/Financial data available for sale
Non cumrent assets classified as held for sale

Total cumrent assets

Total Assets
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Shareholders Equity

Shara Capital

Share premium reserve
Reserves

Retained eamings

Total sharehoiders equity (8)

Non controlling interest (b)
Total Equity (c)=(a)*(b)
Liabilities

Non current Liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Employee retirement benefits
Deferred Taxes

Other non-current liabilities
Total non current Liabilities
Current Liablities

Short term lcans for working capital

Current portion of non-curmrent loans and
borrowings

Short-term portion of non-current Lease
Income Tax Payable
Accounts payable and other current liabiities

Total cumrent Liabllities
Total Liabilities (a)

Total Equity & Liabllitles (c) + (d)

Note

23

11
12

13
14

16

17

21

23

21
21

21
23

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Group Company

311122015 | 311122014 3171212015 3111272014
224.861 224.767 215 233
17.163 17,163 0 0
10.147 11.277 45 68
23.455 25,081 79.620 79.765
6.193 5.500! 47 47
7.785 8.245 788 767
280.603 202122 80.724 £80.880
78.346 85.970 0 0
1.924 2.120] 008 934
3.803 13.666 901 815
16.537 18.718, 35 11
24 860 34,888 85 626
3.336 ol 0 0
40 ol 0 0
128.846 155.362 1,009 2.385
418.450 447484 82633 83,265
54,562 54,562 54.562 54,562
11.375 11.385 12.046 12.046
31.646 32372 14.879 14.374
60.032 60.114 327! 1.071
157.614 158.433 81.161 82.054
0 0! 0 0
157.615 158.433 81.161 82.054
93.754 104.000 0 0
3,086 3.104 334 300
1.693 1.408 0 0
5247 5.491 24 24
103.780 115.001 358 324
35811 35461 0 0
17.285 27.347 0 0
2.801 2.215 0 0
1.008 2636 20 20
99161 106.391 1.005 867
157.055 174.040 1.115 887
260.835 289.050 1.472 1.211
418.450 447484 82633 83.265
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Income Statement (Con

1/1t

Nota
Revenue 520
Cost of Goods Sold 5.28
Gross Proft
Other opereting income 6.29
Distribution expenses 6,29
Administrative expenses 6,29
Other operating expenses 6.2
Operating Profit / (Loss)
Total finance cost 6.29
Total finance income 6.29
Contribution associgte companies losses
Contribution to losses of subsidiary sale
Profit/ {Loss) before Tax
Income tax 2
Tax L4172 Tax Free Reserves 2
Net Income/Loss (A)
Atribuzable to:
Equity hoiders of the parent
Non contralling interest
Net Income/Loss (A)
Basic (Losses)/Eamings per Share (in %
Euro) '

Euro)

Diluted (Losses)Earnings per Share (in )

4

1/12/2015and 1/1t

lidated) for the peri

1/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Group

131122015 11-31122015 13122005 11-31122014" 11-311272014" 11-311122014"

Continuing  Discontinued Contining  Discontinued
413,300 1.142 414442 305,471 17.8% 413370
(242.332) (1.016) (243,348) (234.319) (14,595) (248.914)
170.568 1% 171.004 161.151 3304 164.456
353 n 3.807 7.861 1.265 .16
(132638) (2441) (135,080} (134,115) (5.758) (139.874)
(18.770) (785) (19.555) (22.157) (3,660 25817)
(882) (116) (998) (1.068) (1.155) (2.223)
2243 [2.944) 19.268 16712 (6,004) 5668
(14.706) (252) (14.857) (13.508) (916) (14425)
1,085 1 1.08 123 a 132
(2.381) 0 (2.391) (1.700) 0 (1.700)
(469) 0 (469) 0 0 0
5.703 (3.185) 2517 (2.315) (6.823) (9.137)
2.708) 444 (2.265) (1.067) (1.895) (2.962)
0 0 0 625 0 625
2.504 (2.741) 23 (2757) (8.718) (11475)
2994 (2.741) 253 2757) (8.718) (11475)
0 0 0 0 0 0
2904 (2.741) 53 (2757) (8.718) (11475)
0.0587 0,0538) 0,0050 (0,0641) 0,1710) 0,2250)
0.0576 0,0527) 0,0048 (0,0534) (0,1690) (0.2225)

* The data of the prior comparable periods have been reclassified to be comparable with the figures of corresponding period of 2015 in respect to

characterizing continued and discontinued operation (Note 29)

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income (Consolidated) for the peri
1/1to31/12/2015and 1/1to031/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Group
3122015 IN-311122015  114-31122015  11-31122014° 11-31122014° 111-31122004
Nae m m Total Operaton m m Totel Oerztion
Net IncomefLoss (A) 2904 2741) %3 [2757) (879 (11475)
Orher comprehensive income/{expe~ses)
(Other comprehensive income transfiemed to
the income statement
Valuation of financial assets avaliabie for sele (264) 0 4) 0 0 0
Foreigpcwztyuansmnfmforegn 58, 8 14401 W u %)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
cash fow hedges 2 % 0 % 81 0 81
mmmmmmm (1762 8 (157 8 4 8
Orher comprehensive income not transferred
10 the income statement
Actuarial gainflosses on defined banefi 9 ) 0 150 (515) 9 (5061
pension plans
Tota! Other comprehensie income not
ey 150 0 150 (515) 4 (506)
Comprenensive IncomeLosses e Tax (B) (1612 88 (1.525) (143) 3 (690)
Tota! Comprehensive Incomef{Losses) afte tax (A)+(B) 138 12653) (1272) (3.500) (8.5%5) (12.164)
Adtrid.sable to:
Equiy holders of the parent 138 (2653) (1272) (3.500) (8.685) (12164)
Non controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0 0
m%j‘;’mm’“ W 88 (122 (S0 @8N (128

* The data of the prior comparable periods have been reclassified to be comparable with the figures of corresponding period of 2015 in respect to
characterizing continued and discontinued operation (Note 29)

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Income Statement (Separate) for the period

1/1to31/12/2015and 1/1t
(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue

Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Depreciation/Amortisation
(Administration)

Other operating expenses
Operating Profit / (Loss)

Total finance cost
Total finance income
Profit / (Loss) before Tax

Income tax
Net Income/Loss (A)

Note

5
5

23

1/12/2014

COMPANY

1/1-31/12/2015

1/1-31/12/2014

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015

3.986 3,756
(3.460) (3.208)
526 548
792 767
(2.142) (2.049)
(602) (8.669)
(1) (1)
(1.427) (9.404)
(2) (40)
8
(1.430) (9.436)
24 1.192
(1.405) (8.244)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income (Separate) for the period
1/1to31/12/2015and1/1t031/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY

Note 1/1-31/12/2015 1/1-31/12/2014
Net Income/Loss (A) (1.405) (8.244)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
Other comprehensive income not transferred to the income

statement

Actuarial gain/losses on defined benefit pension plans 19 7 (51)
Total other comprehensive income not transferred to 7 51)
the income statement \
Comprehensive Income/Losses after Tax (B) 7 (51)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Losses) after tax

(A)+(B) (1.398) (8.295)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (1.398) (8.295)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Losses) after tax 1308 8995
(A#®) il

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equi Consolidated

for the period 1/1to0 31/12/2015and 1/1 to 31/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)
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The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of Financial Statements.

44
Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

Statement of Changes in Equi Separate

for the period 1/1to 31/12/2015and 1/1 to 31/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Retained eamings /

Share premium
Share Capital péssey Reserves Own shares (Accumiated osses Total Equity
Balance at 1.1, 2014 50,962 R 17,221 0 966 89,501
Total comprehensive incomeloss) for the penod
Profit or loss 0 0 0 0 (6.244) (B.244)
Acnarial oains (losses) on defined benefit pension plan 0 0 0 0 (51) {51)
Vaation of fnancial assets avallabie for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0
&W incomexfoss for the period alley 0 0 0 0 (8.295) (8.205)
Transactions with sharehokders, recorded drectly in
equlty
Share Capetal Increase due to reserves caprakzalion L5065 (276) {a2%4) 0 0 0
Saies|Purchases) of own shares 0 0 0 ] 0 0
SOP Resenve 0 0 447 0 0 447
Total wansacions with shareholders 3,569 (276) (2.846) 0 0 M1
Balance at 31.12. 204 54,562 12,046 14314 0 10N B2.054
Batance at 1.1, 2015 8 562 12,045 14374 ] 1071 B2.054
Total comprehersive incomeloss) for the period
Peofit or loss 0 0 0 ] (1405) (1.405)
Actuarial gains (lasses) on defined benefit pension plan 0 0 0 0 7 7
mmmmmmmmm 0 0 0 0 (1.368) (1.358)
Transactions with sharehokders, recorded drectly in
equlty
SOP Resenve 0 0 506 ] 0 505
Total ransacdons with shareholders 0 0 505 0 0 506
Balance 8t 31,12. 2015 54 562 12,046 14870 0 20 81.161
The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows (Consolidated and Separate

for the period 1/1to 31/12/2015and 1/1 to 31/12/2014

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

(Oparaling Activiies

(88 Profit befcrs taxes

Profit befors taues (Discontinued Operations)

Adpustments lor

Incorms o depreciasion in fead subsidy

Provsions

Forsign axchange dilerences

Rusubs (ncome, @xpenses, proft and loss) o investrient actiy
Interest Exponse

Plusless ad) bor changes in working capial refated o the operatng atiites
Decrease /{increase) i iweniory

Decrease / (increase) in ride and ciher recenibies

[Decrease) /increasn n Rabiities (aachudig barks)

Less:

nterest paxi

Income tixes pasd

(Oporating inflow | outfiow) from discontinued operasons

Nst cash generatod from operations (2

Invasting Aciviies

Purchase or Shars caplal increase of subsicianes and relitd companies
Purchass of tangitée and rtanglie fivad assets
Procaeds from dspesal of tangtle and intangble assats
Addion of other investmants

Procods frons the Sa of olher ivestmonts

Inferest Recgived

Inwesting infow ! (outilow) from discontinued operations
Totat inflow | foutfiow) from evesting activibes ()
Financing Activities
Recogesi(Paymants) for sale(purchase) of own shares
Procoads from ssuad ers

Repayment of nans

Repayment of easing fabiitizs

Financing inflow | (cufiow] from discontinued operations

Toesl inflow  {outflow) from financing activiies (c)

Nt incraasa/{cecreese) in cash end cash squivalents for 1a parad (8)+b)+{c)
Cash and cash aquivalunts & e bogiming of the period

Effect of exchange rate luctusions on cash hekd

Closing belance, cash and cash equivalents

GROUP

CONPANY

Noe  UI3U12201  1AJWI20WT  1NSVIZ01S 113122014

21

5 (2.315) (1430) (5.438)
(3.189) (6.823) 0 0
13.300 17787 L7 8669
(2%) (408) 0 0
815 m 157 125

im {441 0 0
(59 (135) ] L]
1342 12805 2 40
5 840) (14.406) 0 0
1548 (101%) 4 205
(3.754) 126457 27 (16%)
(13 845) (12.468) 2 (41
(3.455) (1.296) 3 0
10554 6664 0 0
2015 31 (53%) (319)
®.717) {1540) 0 0
(9.845) (417 (26) )]
i n 0 0

0 0 9 0

2788 0 0 0
R 1 9 8

(71} 28 { 0
(13.730) (15.177) {2} 15
0 0 0 0
2155 i) 0 0
(4.00d) (53 385) 0 0
(289 (3.340) 9 0
(8.080) (249 0 0
Q309 12819 0 0
947 §980 (861) (3%0)
UNs 289 8% %56
(108) 3% 0 0
24.860 34888 (] 626

* The data of the prior comparable periods have been reclassified to be comparable with the figures of corresponding period of 2015 in respect to

characterizing continued and discontinued operation (Note 29)

Cash and cash equivalents at the openning period 1/1/2015 differ from those at the closing period 31/12/2014 by the cash and cash equivalents of

the subsidiary SERVICE ONE SA which stopped being consolidated in the fiscal year 2015 due to its sale (Note 1.2).

The accompanying notes on pages 47 to 109 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (consolidated and

separate) as of Dec 31, 2015 and for the year then ended

1. Corporate information
1.1 General Information

FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. with the common use title of FOURLIS SA (hereinafter the Company) was
incorporated in 1950 as A. FOURLIS AND CO., and from 1966 operated as FOURLIS BROS S.A.
(Government Gazette, AE and EPE issue 618/ 13.6.1966). It was renamed to FOURLIS HOLDING S.A.
by a decision of an Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Assembly on 10/3/2000, which was approved
by decision K2 - 3792/ 25.04.2000 of the Ministry of Development. The Shareholders’ General
Assembly also approved the conversion of the Company to a holding company and thus also approved

the change in its scope.

The head of the Company is located at 18-20 Sorou street, Building A Maroussi. It is registered in the
Companies Registry of the Ministry of Development with registration number 13110/06/B/86/01 and

general electronic commercial registry number 258101000 and web address www.fourlis.gr.
The Company is listed in the Athens Stock Exchange since April 1988.

The Company’s term, in accordance with its Articles of Incorporation, was originally set for 30 years.
In accordance with a decision of the Extraordinary Assembly of the Shareholders on 19/2/1988, the

term was extended for a further 30 years i.e. to 2026.

The current Board of Directors of the parent company is as follows:

[ary

Vassilis St. Fourlis, Chairman, executive member

Dafni A. Fourlis, Vice Chairman, executive member

Eftihios Th. Vassilakis, Independent Vice Chairman, independent non executive member
Apostolos D. Petalas, CEO, executive member

Lyda St. Fourlis, Director, executive member

Toannis Ev. Brebos, Director, non executive member

Pavlos K. Triposkiadis , Director, independent non executive member

Ioannis K. Papaioannou, Director, independent non executive member

w ® N o U K~ WL N

Ioannis Ath. Kostopoulos, Director, independent non executive member

The total number of employees of the Group as at the end of current and previous year was at 3.760
and 3.710 respectively while the total number of employees of the Company on 31/12/2015 was 86
and on 31/12/2014 was 76.
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1.2 Activities

The Company’s activities are the investment in domestic and foreign companies of all types, regardless

their objectives and type.

The Company also provides general administration financial management and information technology
services. The centralization of Group support services for the Group Companies in Greece, mainly in
the areas of IT, HR, financial planning and controlling, treasury and social responsibility operated for a
whole year, was gradually implemented since 2012, aiming to gain benefits from synergies and to
organize central coordination of decision making and implementing. Centralized services are provided
according to arm’s length principle from FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A.

The Financial Statements include the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) as presented below:

Consolidation

Name Location % Holding Method
HOUSEMARKET SA Athens, Greece 100,00 Full
FOURLIS TRADE SA Athens, Greece 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA Athens, Greece 100,00 Full
TRADE LOGISTICS SA* Athens, Greece 100,00 Full
RENTIS SA* Athens, Greece 100,00 Full
GENCO TRADE SRL Bucharest, Romania 1,57 Full
GENCO TRADE SRL* Bucharest, Romania 98,43 Full
GENCO BULGARIA EOOD* Sofia, Bulgaria 100,00 Full
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD* Sofia, Bulgaria 100,00 Full
HM HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
WYLDES LIMITED LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS Istanbul, Turkey 100,00 Full

TICARET A.S.*
* Companies in which FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. has an indirect participation

Also in Consolidated Financial Statements the below mentioned related companies are included.
Consolidation

. o .
Company Location /o Holding Method

SPEEDEX SA Athens, Greece 49,55%  Net equity

SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD* Cyprus 50,00%  Net equity

* Companies in which FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. has an indirect participation

The shareholding percentages to the subsidiary companies have changed comparing to the prior year
due to the participation of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. in the share capital increases
of the subsidiary GENCO TRADE SRL, which were completed in December 2015. Moreover, on

24/11/2015 the subsidiary FOURLIS TRADE S.A. sold and transferred by full ownership and possession
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the nominal shares of the company SERVICE ONE S.A. that correspond to 79,95% of the shareholding
of the current paid-up share capital of the company, to the third company ETYT LTD. The completion

of the transfer of the remaining 20,05% is agreed to take place not later than within two years at an

agreed price and the relative amount is distinctly presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position in Non — current assets held for sale.

During the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015 the following share capital changes were realised:

RENTIS S.A.: Following the resolutions of the General Assembly of shareholders held on
3/6/2015 and 16/12/2015, an increase in the share capital of the company was implemented by
the total amount of euros 1.950.000,00 euros, by issuing 1.950.000 new common nominal vote
shares, of nominal value € 1,00 per share. This share capital increase was totally covered by the
shareholder H.M. HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LIMITED. After the aforementioned increase, the
share capital of the company amounts to € 14.460.000,00 divided into 14.460.000 nominal

shares of nominal value € 1,00 per share.

INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S.: Following the resolutions of
November 2015 of the General Assembly of the shareholders of the company, an increase in
the share capital of the company was implemented by the total amount of euros 4.000.000,00
euros, by issuing 10.000.000 new common nominal vote shares, of nominal value TL 0,40 per
share. This share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder INTERSPORT
ATHLETICS S.A. After the aforementioned increase, the share capital of the company amounts
to TL 40.612.700,00 divided into 101.531.750 nominal shares of nominal value TL 0,40 per

share.

GENCO TRADE SRL: Following the resolution of the General Assembly of the shareholders of the
company, the share capital of the company increased by the amount of RON 8.025.000,00 by
issuing 37.500 nominal shares, of nominal value RON 214,00 each. The amount of this share
capital increase, which was registered on the commercial register on 30/7/2015, was totally
covered by the shareholder INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. After the aforementioned share
capital increase, the registration of which in the commercial register is completed, the share
capital on 31/12/2015 amounts to RON 67.996.360,00 divided into 317.740 nominal shares of
nominal value RON 214,00 each.

WYLDES LTD: Under ordinary resolution of 10/3/2015 and 4/12/2015 effectuated by the only
member - shareholder of the company, namely HOUSEMARKET SA, the share capital increased
by the total amount of € 260,00 by issuing 260 shares, of nominal value €1,00 per share.
Therefore the share capital of the company on 31/12/2015 amounts to € 6.660

SERVICE ONE S.A.: On 24/11/2015 FOURLIS TRADE S.A. sold and transferred to ETYT LTD, by
full ownership, possession and occupation, 290.068 nominal shares of nominal value € 0,30
per share and total nominal value € 87.020,40, corresponding to 79,95% of the paid-up share

capital of the Company, at the price of € 160.000,00. Following the resolution of 31/12/2015
49

Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

of the General Assembly of the shareholders of the company, the share capital increased by
the amount of € 400.000,20 by issuing 1.333.334 new nominal shares, of nominal value €
0,30 per share. The preemptive right of the existing shares was set to be exercised not later
than 31/3/2016 and the share capital increase to be covered not later than 15/4/2016. After
the agreement of all shareholders, the shareholder ETYT LTD undertook the payment of the
total amount of the share capital increase. As long as this share capital increase is completed
by full payment of its amount, the share capital will amount to € 508.840,20 divided into
1.696.134 nominal shares, of nominal value € 0,30 per share, while the investment of the
Group (through FOURLIS TRADE S.A.) to the company will be formed to 4,28% after the

aforementioned increase of the paid-up share capital.

2. Basis of presentation of the Financial Statements
2.1. Basis of preparation

The accompanying Financial Statements consist of the separate financial statements of the parent
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group and have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European
Union. The Board of Directors approved the accompanying financial statements for the year ended on
December 31 2015, on March 7, 2016. These financial statements are subject to the approval of the

General Assembly of the Company’s shareholders.

The accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain data of Assets and Liabilities (investment properties and
derivative financial instruments) that have been measured at fair value, and assuming that the
Company and its subsidiaries will continue as a going concern. All amounts are presented in thousands

of Euro, unless otherwise stated and any differentiations in sums are due to rounding.

2.2. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates are
based on management’s previous experience including expectations of future events under normal
conditions. The aforementioned judgments, estimates and assumptions are periodically re - assessed

in order to be in line with current available data and reflect current risks.

When applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant impact on the items reported in the financial

statements:
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Estimates:

e Deferred Tax assets: deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward unused tax losses can be utilised. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires
significant judgments and estimates to be made in relation to the future activities and prospects

of the Group companies and as to the level and timing of future taxable profits.

Fair Values of investment properties.: the Group carries its investment properties at fair values as
determined by independent appraising firms. The fair values of investment properties are
assessed on an annual basis. The determination of the fair values of properties requires
management to make assumptions with respect to the market rental rates for similar properties,

sales comparables, capitalization and yield rates, and expectations on future rental income.

e Impairment test of investments in subsidiaries: at each reporting date, the Parent Company
examines whether there are impairment indicators in relation to its investments in subsidiaries.
Such assessment requires management to make significant judgements with respect to the
existence of internal or external factors and the extent to which they affect the recoverable
amount of these investments. If impairment indicators exist, the Company determines the
recoverable amount of these investments. The determination of the recoverable amount requires
estimates to be made with respect to the expected future cash flows of the investment, the
business plans of the subsidiaries, and the determination of the applicable discount and growth

rates. Further details are provided in Note 10.

o Useful lives of property plant and equijpment: Management makes estimates when determining
the useful lives of depreciable assets. Such estimates are periodically reviewed. The useful lives

estimated and applied are discussed in Note 3.7.

e Post - retirement benefits to personnel. post - retirement obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of a discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and turnover rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation
and the underlying assumptions included therein, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses that result from the difference among
the actuarial assumptions are recognized directly in Equity. Such actuarial assumptions are

periodically reviewed by management. Further details are provided in Note 19.
Judgments:

e Provisions for impaired receivables: In the subsidiaries of the Segment of Wholesale Trading of
Electrical Equipment the provision of impaired receivables is based on the historical data of

receivables. Further details are provided in Note 12.
e Provisions for slow moving goods. Inventory turnover ratio is tested regularly and provisions are
made for the slow moving goods. Further details are provided in Note 11.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following accounting principles:

3.1. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Company and all
subsidiaries controlled by the Company directly or indirectly. Control exists when the parent company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date and using the same
accounting policies as the parent company. Intra - group transactions (including investments in related
companies), balances and unrealized gains are eliminated. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date that control commences and cease to be consolidated from the date that control is transferred
out of the Group. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non - controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. The financial results of subsidiaries, that are
acquired or sold within the year, are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

from or up to the date of acquisition or sale, respectively.

Certain of the above - mentioned requirements were applied on a prospective basis based on the
revised IAS 27 and therefore the following differences are carried forward in certain instances from the

previous basis of consolidation:

e  Acquisitions of non - controlling interests, prior to January 1, 2010, were accounted for using the
parent entity extension method, whereby, the difference between the consideration and the book

value of the share of net assets acquired were recognised as goodwill.

e Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non - controlling interest until the balance
was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses were attributed to the parent, unless the non -

controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover these.

3.2. Business Combinations and Goodwiill

Business Combination is a transaction or another event during which an acquirer takes over control of
one or more businesses. A Business is a combination of activities and assets that can be leaded and

managed in order to return profits directly to its owners.

If the acquired assets do not compose a business, the transaction or any other fact are accounted as
an acquisition of an asset and the acquisition cost is allocated among assets and liabilities based on

the relative fair values during the acquisition date.

Business Combination is accounted for using acquisition method. The cost of acquisition of a

subsidiary is the fair value of the assets contributed, the shares issued and the liabilities assumed at
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the transaction date, plus the amount of any non - controlling interest in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non - controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net asset. Acquisition costs are

expensed when incurred.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair values of the net identifiable assets acquired, the

difference is recorded directly to the income statement.

Goodwill arising from subsidiaries’” acquisitions is recorded as an intangible asset. Goodwill is not
amortized but at least annually is subject to impairment test. As a result, after initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost, less any impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each cash
generating unit that is expected to benefit from the combination. The impairment test is performed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to its carrying value including the
allocated goodwill. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. The value in use is determined via a discounted cash flow analysis. Impairment losses

relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of subsidiaries are determined after taking into account the

goodwill allocated to the disposed unit.

3.3 Investments in subsidiaries

In the separate financial statements of the Parent Company, investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost, less any impairment in value. Impairment tests are carried out when there are clear

indicators of impairment, in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets".

3.4 Investments in associates

Associates are those entities, in which the Group has significant influence but which are neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture of the Group. A percentage holding up to 50% implies significant
influence. Such percentage holding indicates that company is an associate. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method based on which the investment is carried at cost plus post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less provisions for any
impairment in value. Goodwill arising upon the acquisition of associates is included in the value of

investment, while any negative goodwill is recorded in the income statement upon acquisition.

The Group’s share in the gains or losses of associates after acquisition is recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income, while post - acquisition movements in reserves are recognized directly in

reserves.

In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group appropriately adjusts the financial statements
of those associates who are not applying IFRS so as to comply with IFRS and be uniform with the

accounting policies of the Group. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
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associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are

eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the transferred asset.

When the Group’s participation to the associate’s losses equals or exceeds its interest in an associate,
including any other bad debts, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has any liabilities
or made payments on behalf of the associate and generally those arising from the ownership status.
In the separate financial statements of the Parent Company, investments in associates are accounted

for at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

3.5 Segment information

The Board of Directors of the Company is the chief operating decision maker and monitors internal
financial reporting information in order to evaluate the performance of the Company and the Group

and to take decisions about resource allocation.

Management has defined its segments based on these internal reports according to IFRS 8. The
operating segments of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. are defined as those business segments where the

Group is active and on which the internal information system of the Group is based.
For the categorization by business segment, the following has been taken into account:

e the nature of products and services,

e quantitative limitations, required by IFRS 8.
According to the aforementioned, the Group presents information by operating segment as follows:

e Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores).
e Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT and TAF stores).

e  Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment.

3.6 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional currency and reporting currency

The companies of the Group maintain their books in the currency of the financial environment in which
each company operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Euro’s which is the functional currency of the parent company.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency according to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange differences on non-
monetary items carried at fair value are considered as part of the fair value of those items and are

recorded together with the fair value adjustments.
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(c) Foreign Group Companies

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency. The translation of the financial
statements of the Group’s companies which use a different functional currency from the parent

company is performed as follows:

e Assets and liabilities are translated to Euro at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the

Statement of Financial Position.
e  Equity is translated at historic rates.

e Income and expenses are translated using the average foreign exchange rate of the period and
on an annual base according to the average foreign exchange rate of the last twelve (12)

months.

e The resulting foreign exchange differences (gains/losses) are recognized in other comprehensive
income and in Foreign Exchange differences from Statement of Financial Position translation
Reserve. When subsidiaries operating in foreign countries are sold, accumulated foreign exchange
differences existing in the Foreign Exchange differences from Statement of Financial Position
translation Reserve are recognized to the statement of income as gains or losses from

investments sales.

Goodwill and adjustments to fair values upon an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and are translated at the closing rate of the date of the

Statement of Financial Position.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured, by category, as follows:

e All categories of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses.

e Cost includes all directly attributable costs for the acquisition of the items of property, plant and
equipment. These costs include borrowing costs of loans drawn to finance the acquisition or
construction of assets which are capitalized until the date when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Significant additions and improvements are recognised as part of the cost of the asset when the
recognition criteria are met. All other costs (repairs and maintenance) are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred.

Upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying value is recorded as gain or loss in the Income Statement.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight - line basis over the estimated useful economic life of the
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assets. Useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis.

The estimated useful lives of the Group’s property plant and equipment, except of the land that is not

depreciated, are as follows:

Category Useful life

Buildings - Building installations (owned premises) 10 - 40 years
Buildings on third party land 10 — 36 years
Machinery and equipment 9 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 6 - 9 years
Miscellaneous equipment 4 - 10 years

Owner - occupied buildings or buildings whose use has not yet been determined and which are under
construction are recorded at cost less any impairment losses. This cost includes professional
compensations and borrowing costs. The depreciation of that owner - occupied buildings begins from

the time the buildings are ready for use.

3.8 Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which is evaluated annually. The carrying
value of investment property reflects the market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair values of investment property fair value are recognized in the Income

Statement of the period they occur.

3.9 Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group (excluding goodwill) are depreciated over their useful life.

¢ Royalties

Trademarks and licenses are valued at cost less amortization. Amortization is charged to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight - line basis over the estimated useful lives, which have been

determined from 5 to 20 years.

e Software - Other intangible assets

Software licenses are valued at cost less amortization. Amortization is charged on a straight - line

basis over the estimated useful lives and the depreciation rate is 15%.

Expenditure on development and maintenance of software is expensed as incurred. Expenditure of
development activities for the production of new or substantially improved software (in - house
developments), is recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: a) when a
specific asset is created, b) when it can be demonstrated that the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits and c) when the expenditures of development can be measured
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reliably. Such expenditures include also labour costs and an appropriate proportion of overheads. In
case of software replacement, while the old one is no longer in use, intangible asset is permanently

deleted from the Books and the net book value burdens the income statement.

Costs incurred for performing software upgrades, are capitalised and the new gross value forms the

depreciable amount.

3.10 Impairment of non - financial assets except Goodwill

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed for possible impairment when there is
indication that the book value can not be recovered i.e. when the book value is higher than the

recoverable amount from their use or sale.

The recoverable value is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre - tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable value is less than the carrying value, then the net book

value is reduced to the recoverable value.

Impairment losses are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Income, except if the asset has been
revalued, then the impairment loss reduces the related revaluation reserve. An assessment is made at
each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses
may no longer exists of have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. When in a subsequent period, the impairment loss should be reversed; the
carrying value of the asset is increased to the level of the revised estimation of recoverable amount.
The new net book value should not exceed the net book value that would have been determined if the

impairment losses had not been accounted in previous periods.

3.11 Financial instruments

A financial instrument consists of every agreement that creates a financial asset in a business and a
financial liability or equity instrument in another business.

The Group’s financial instruments are classified at initial recognition in the following categories based

on the substance of the agreement and the purpose for which they were acquired:

f) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Such financial assets, represent assets, which satisfy any of the following conditions:

e Financial assets held for trading (including derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedging relationships, those that are acquired or created in order to be sold or re -

acquired and those which form part of a portfolio of recognized financial means).

e Financial assets designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial

recognition.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

/i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non - derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in active market. This category does not include:

e Receivables from advances for the purchase of goods or services,
e Receivables resulting from tax transactions imposed by law,

e Any item not dealt with by an agreement giving the right to an entity to collect cash or other

financial assets.

Loans and receivables are included in current liabilities/ assets, except of those whose maturity
extends beyond twelve (12) months after the reporting date and which are classified as non - current
liabilities/ assets. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Gains and losses are
recognized in income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through

the amortization process.

lif) Held - to - maturity Investments

Non - derivative financial items with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified
as held - to - maturity when the Group has the intent and ability to hold to term to maturity. After
initial measurement, held - to - maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans

and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

iv) Available - for - sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets which are classified under this category or which cannot be classified
under any of the three preceding categories. Financial assets available for sales are valued at fair
value and the unrealised gains or losses are recognised as other comprehensive income in a reserve
under equity until the item is sold or impaired. At the date of sale or impairment, the gains or losses
are transferred to the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments

are not reversed through the income statement.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade date, which is the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the item. Investments are initially recorded at fair value plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transactions costs.
Investments are derecognised when the right to the cash flows of the investment expire or are
transferred and the Group has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards related to the

ownership of the investment.

The fair values of financial assets, which are traded on active markets, are determined by reference to
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quoted prices. The fair value of financial assets not traded on active markets is determined by using
valuation techniques such as use of recent arms length transactions, reference to other instruments

that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

3.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is

impaired.
Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either

directly or through use of an allowance account.

The amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk

characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement, to the extent

that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
Available for sale financial assets

For equity instruments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured at the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment losses are reversed through
the income statements if an increase in the fair value of the debt instrument can be objectively related

to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the income statement.
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3.13 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. The cost of completed products and incomplete inventory includes the
cost of direct raw materials, the direct labor cost and the general industrial expenses. The net
realizable value is the estimated sales price less any costs to sell. The cost of inventory does not

include any financial expenses.

3.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and they are subsequently valuated at the

amortised cost by using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

When there is evidence of impairment of receivables, the carrying value is reduced to its recoverable
amount, which is the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the initial effective

interest rate. Then, the interest is calculated at the same rate on the impaired (new book) value.

3.15 Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and on hand, as well as short term (up to 3 months)

investments of high liquidation and low risk.
3.16 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operation

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operation are valued at the lower price between
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any possible fair value increase in a subsequent
valuation is registered in Profit and loss but for amounts not bigger than the initially registered
impairment loss. Since the date on which an asset is classified as held for sale, this asset is no longer
depreciated or amortized. Non-current assets held for sale are classified as such, provided that their
carrying value will be recovered through sale rather than through continuing use. This condition is
considered valid only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale at
its current condition. Management requires commitment to the sale which is expected to be completed
either based on stipulated by contractual time commitment or within a year from classification date.
A discontinued operation is an integral part of a financial entity that either has been sold or has been
classified as held for sale and:
a) represents a separate major part of business operations or a geographical area of operations,
b) is part of a single, coordinated divestment program of a great part of operations or a geographical
area of operations or

c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with the prospect to be resold.

3.17 Share Capital

Direct costs incurred for increases in share capital are recorded, net of related income taxes against

the share premium reserve. The cost of treasury shares net of any related income tax is recorded as a
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reduction of equity, until these shares are sold or cancelled. Any gain or loss on sale of treasury
shares, net of direct transaction costs and any related income tax is recorded as a reserve account

under equity.

3.18 Loans

Loans are initially recorded at their fair value less any direct costs related to the transaction. After
initial recognition, they are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method.

Interest and related expenses on loans taken for purchase or construction of fixed assets are
capitalized. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for its intended use. In
case of borrowing specifically for the purpose of constructing or acquiring an asset, the borrowing
costs related to the loan agreement are directly capitalised. Otherwise, in order to determine the part
of the loan related with that fixed asset, a method is implemented to determine the proportion of the
capitalized interest and the proportion of the interest which will be recorded to the statement of
comprehensive income as an expense. Revenues, occurred as a result of investing part of a loan taken

for construction of a fixed asset, reduce the amount of borrowing costs capitalized.

3.19 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in interest
rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken

directly to the income statement.

The effective part of hedges that qualify for hedge accounting is recognized directly to equity if it is
related to cash flow hedges while the ineffective part is charged to the consolidated income statement,
while the non - effective part is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. If the hedge is
related to effective fair value hedges, the gain or loss from remeasuring the derivative hedging
instrument at fair value is recognized in profit or loss and the gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is also recognized

in profit or loss.

Under cash flow hedge accounting, when the hedged firm commitment results in the recognition of
non - financial asset or a non - financial liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognized
the associated gains or losses that had previously been recognized in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the acquisition cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability. For all other
cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognized in equity are transferred to the income
statement in the same year in which the hedged firm commitment affects the statement of

comprehensive income.
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3.20 Current and Deferred Tax

Taxes recorded in the statement of comprehensive income include both current and deferred taxes.

Current income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case it is recognised, in a similar way, directly in
equity. Current income taxes include the current liabilities and/ or assets, to or from the tax
authorities, relating to the taxes payable on the taxable income of the period. Current taxes are
increased by any income taxes related to provisions for tax differences or additional taxes which are

imposed by the tax authorities upon audit of the unaudited tax years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates which are expected to apply in the
year where the asset or liability will be settled, taking into account the tax rates (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or are virtually applicable at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise on temporary differences between the recognition of assets and liabilities for tax
purposes and those for the purposes of preparation of the financial statements. Deferred tax is
calculated using the liability method on all taxable temporary differences at the reporting date,

between the tax basis and book value of assets and liabilities.

The expected tax effects of temporary tax differences are recognized either as deferred tax liabilities
or as deferred tax assets. In case of an inability to accurately measure temporary tax differences, the
initial recognition is made based on estimation of the reversal time and such estimation is reviewed

each year.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which the
unused tax losses and tax credits can be used or sufficient taxable deductible temporary differences
that incur in the same company and will be recovered. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that is unlikely that sufficient taxable income will be

generated in order to recover the deferred tax asset.
The Group sets off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities only if:
e it has a legal right to set off current tax receivables against current tax payables and

e deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax imposed by the same tax

authority.

As a result deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis in the separate financial
statements of the Company while such items are presented separately in the consolidated accounts of

the Group.

If the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than business combination, then it does not affect the neither the accounting nor the taxable profit or

loss and therefore it is not taken into account.
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The tax rates in the countries that the Group is operating presented below:

Country % Income Tax/ Deferred
Tax
Greece 29,0%
Romania 16,0%
Cyprus 12,5%
Bulgaria 10,0%
Turkey 20,0%

3.21 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are:

a) Short term benefits

Short term benefits to employees in money or in kind are recorded as an expense as they accrue.

b) Post - retirement benefits

According to the regulations of Law 2112/ 1920 amended by the article 74 paragraph 2 of the Law
3863/2010 and completed be the Law 3899/17-12-10 article 17 paragraph 5a and the Law 4093/12,
the Greek subsidiaries of the Group pay retirement compensation to their employees. Such
compensation varies in relation to the employees’ years of service and salary payable at the time of
retirement and is accounted for as a defined benefit plan. Post - retirement obligations are calculated
at the present value of future employee benefits accrued as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the benefits to be earned over their expected labor life. The above mentioned obligations are
calculated based on actuarial valuation methods and are determined using the Projected Unit Method.
Net costs of the period are included in the attached statement of comprehensive income and consist of
the present value of the employee benefits that were accrued during the current year, the interest
derived from the employee benefit obligation and the actuarial gains and losses which are recognised
in full in the period in which they occur in the comprehensive income and they are not transferred in
income statement in next periods. Full yield curve method is used for the definition of the discount

interest rate in the calculation of the present value of the employee benefits.

c) State insurance programs

The employees of the Greek subsidiaries of the Group are covered, in terms of insurance programs,
mainly through the Social Insurance Institution (IKA) the largest Social Security Organization of the
private sector, which supplies pension and medical coverage. Every employee is obliged to participate
partially, through his salary, in the costs of the insurance program, while the remaining cost is covered
by the Group. Upon retirement, the pension fund is responsible to cover the obligation of pensions and

retirement benefits to the employees. As a consequence the Group does not have any other legal or
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future obligation to cover future employee benefits according to this pension program. This program is
considered and accounted for as a defined contribution plan whereby the accrued social security

contributions are recorded as an expense in the financial period in which they are incurred.

d) Private insurance programs

Every full time employee of the Group belonging to the management team, according to the internal
company policy, is covered by a private insurance pension and other benefits program. The Group
covers, the contract defined fees, while the financial management of the program is performed by the
insurance company. This program is considered and accounted for as a defined contribution plan
whereby the accrued cost of the insurance fees is recorded as expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

e) Stock option plan

The Company intends to attract, retain and incentivise the executives of the Company and the
executives of its subsidiaries and affiliated companies, as through the Stock Options plan, the
participants have a direct equity interest in the Company which link their performance to the
Company’s future performance and the increase of shareholder value. This program regards equity

shares transactions.

The Company makes decisions regarding the implementation of the Stock Option Plan — to executives
of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates in compliance with par.5 of Art.42e of Law
2190/1920.

A basic condition for participation in the Stock Options plan is the salaried working relationship of
executives with the Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates. The cost of equity settled transactions is
measured by reference to the fair values at the date in which they are granted and is recognized as an
expense over the period from grant date to maturity date of the options with a concurrent increase in

equity.

The program takes into account the following variables: Exercise price, Share price at grant date,
Grant Date, Maturity date(s) of rights, Expected Stock Volatility (Volatility), Dividend Yield, Risk Free
Rate.

3.22 Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized
as deferred income and amortized over the expected useful life of the related asset. Such amortization

is presented in other income statement.

3.23 Contingent liabilities and Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal, contractual or constructive obligation
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as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle this obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the present value of the

expense expected to be required to settle the liability.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless

there is a probability of financial outflow or inflow.

3.24 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of sales of goods and provision of services, net of Value Added

Tax, discounts and returns. Inter - company revenues are eliminated.
The recognition of revenue is accounted for as follows:

e Sales of goods: Sales of goods are recognized when the Group invoices and delivers the goods to
the customers and the goods are accepted by them. Retail sales are through cash payments or
through credit cards. In these cases the income recorded is the amount received by the
customer. In the case of guarantees for returned retail sales value the returns are recorded as

incurred.

e Provision of services: The income from provision of services is recorded in the period in which the

services are provided, based on the stage of completion of the provided service.

e Interest income: Interest income is recognized proportionally in time and by using the effective

interest rate.

e  Dividends: Dividends are recorded as income when the right to collect vests which is upon the
decision of the General Assembly of Shareholders (ordinary or extraordinary). Expenses are

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as accrued.

e Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in distribution
expenses.

e Borrowing costs: Underwriters costs, legal and other direct costs incurred during the issue of long
term loans are deducted from the loan balances and are recorded to the statement of
comprehensive income based on the effective interest rate method over the duration of the loan.
Borrowing cost is recognized as an expense during the issue period, except of the case that

Group capitalizes borrowing costs according to IAS 23.

3.25 Leases

Leases in which all the risks and benefits of the property remain with the lessor are recorded as

finance leases. All the other leasing contracts are recorded as operating leases.

e  Group as a Lessor: Income from operating leasing is recognised as income on a straight - line
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basis over the lease term.

. Group as a Lessee: Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight - line
basis over the lease term. Leases which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased item regardless of whether there is a transfer of the
ownership title or not at the end of the lease, are classified as finance leases. The property held
under finance leases is capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
reduction in the lease liability and the financial expenses in order to achieve a constant interest

rate on the residual financial liability.

The related lease liabilities net of financial expenses are classified as liabilities and the related
financial expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income over the duration of
the lease. Property, plant and equipment acquired through a finance lease are depreciated at the

lower of the assets’ useful lives and the lease term.

3.26 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are not offset in the financial statements unless there is a legal right of
set - off and intention for settlement of the net amount or settlement of the asset and liability

simultaneously.

3.27 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognized where:
e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

e the Group or the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay under a “pass - through”
arrangement and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Groups " continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

3.28 Earnings/Losses per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profits after taxes with the

weighted average number of shares of each period/ year.

The weighted average number of shares arises by summing the outstanding shares into which the
share capital is divided and the rights that can be contingently exercised and are owned by the

company and subtracting the shares buy back.

3.29 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Accounting policies adopted, comply with those adopted during the previous financial year except from

the following standards which the Group and the Company has adopted on 1 January 2015.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 new Cycle, which is a collection
of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015. The Company and the Group expect that the adoption of the updates will have no

impact on their Financial Statements.

> IFRS 3 Business Combinations: This improvement clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its
scope the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of

the joint arrangement itself.

> IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This improvement clarifies that the scope of the
portfolio exception defined in paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes all contracts accounted for
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9
Financial Instruments, regardless of whether they meet the definition of financial assets or

financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

> IAS 40 Investment Properties: This improvement clarifies that determining whether a
specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in IFRS 3
Business Combinations and investment property as defined in IAS 40 Investment Property

requires the separate application of both standards independently of each other.

Standards issued but not have effective for the current accounting period in which the Group and

the Company have not been early adopted.

e IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible assets (Amendment):

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
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The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2016. The
amendment provides additional guidance on how the depreciation or amortization of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets should be calculated. This amendment clarifies the
principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a
result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expected to be generated cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortize intangible assets. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The
Company and the Group expect that the adoption of the updates will have no impact on their

Financial Statements.

e IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amended): Employee Contributions
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015. The
amendment applies to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
objective of the amendment is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of
the number of years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. The Company and the Group are considering the impact

of this adoption of the amendment on their Financial Statements.

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and measurement
The standard is applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption permitted. The final phase of IFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments
project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The standard has not yet been endorsed by

the EU. The Company and the Group are considering the impact on their Financial Statements.

e IFRS 11 Joint arrangements (Amendment): Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1% 2016. IFRS 11
addresses the accounting for interests in joint ventures and joint operations. The amendment adds
new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business in accordance with IFRS and specifies the appropriate accounting treatment
for such acquisitions. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company and the

Group are considering the impact on their Financial Statements.

e IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

68
Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1% 2017. IFRS 15
establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer
(with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The
standard’s requirements will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on
the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.qg.,
sales of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be required,
including disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgments and estimates.
The standard has not been yet endorsed by the EU. The Company and the Group are considering

the impact on their Financial Statements.

e IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (amendment)
The amendment is effective from January 1% 2016. This amendment will allow entities to use the
equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements and will help some jurisdictions move to IFRS for separate financial
statements, reducing compliance costs without reducing the information available to investors. This
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company and the Group are considering

the impact of this adoption of the amendment on their Financial Statements.

o IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (amendment): Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and those in IAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments will be effective from
annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Company and the Group are considering the impact of this adoption of

the amendment on their Financial Statements.

e IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception (Amendments)
The amendments address three issues arising in practice in the application of the investment
entities consolidation exception. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The amendments clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the

investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. Also, the amendments clarify that

69
Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

only a subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair
value. Finally, the amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the
investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments have
not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company and the Group expect that the adoption of the

amendments will have no impact on their Financial Statements.

e IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements further encourage companies to
apply professional judgment in determining what information to disclose and how to structure it in
their financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The narrow-focus amendments to IAS clarify, rather than significantly change,
existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments relate to materiality, order of the notes, subtotals
and disaggregation, accounting policies and presentation of items of other comprehensive income
(OCI) arising from equity accounted Investments. These amendments have not yet been endorsed
by the EU. The Company and the Group will consider the impact of the amendment on their

Financial Statements.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle, which is a
collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 February 2015. The Company and the Group are considering the impact of this adoption

of the standard on their Financial Statements.

> IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: This improvement amends the definitions of 'vesting
condition' and 'market condition' and adds definitions for 'performance condition' and 'service

condition' (which were previously part of the definition of 'vesting condition').

> IFRS 3 Business combinations: This improvement clarifies that contingent consideration in
a business acquisition that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value

through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

> IFRS 8 Operating Segments: This improvement requires an entity to disclose the
judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments
and clarifies that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reportable

segments' assets to the entity's assets if the segment assets are reported regularly.

> IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This improvement in the Basis of Conclusion of IFRS 13
clarifies that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the ability to
measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice

amounts without discounting if the effect of not discounting is immaterial.
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> IAS 16 Property Plant & Equipment: The amendment clarifies that when an item of
property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner

that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.

> IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that an entity providing key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity
is a related party of the reporting entity.

> IAS 38 Intangible Assets: The amendment clarifies that when an intangible asset is
revalued the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the

revaluation of the carrying amount.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle, which is a
collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. These annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The
Company and the Group are considering the impact of this adoption of the standard on their

Financial Statements.

> IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: The
amendment clarifies that changing from one of the disposal methods to the other (through
sale or through distribution to the owners) should not be considered to be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption of
the application of the requirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the

disposal method does not change the date of classification.

> IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. Also,
the amendment clarifies that the IFRS 7 disclosures relating to the offsetting of financial assets

and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report.

> IAS 19 Employee Benefits: The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high

quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

> IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the
greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The
Board specified that the other information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time. If users
do not have access to the other information in this manner, then the interim financial report is

incomplete.
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o IFRS 16 Leases: This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1%
January 2019. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, ie the customer (“lessee”) and the supplier
(“lessor”). This new standard demands that lessees recognize most leases in their financial
statements. The lessess will have a common accounting framework for all leases, with some
exceptions. Accounting of lessors remains essentially unchanged. These amendments have not yet
been endorsed by the EU. The Company and the Group are considering the impact of the standard

on their Financial Statements.

4. Financial Risk Management
Imposition of capital controls in Greece

Banks holiday imposed within the first 20 days of July 2015 and the continuous imposition of
restrictions on capital transactions (capital controls) intensified not only financial uncertainty but also

pressures on the financial system and fiscal aggregates.

Under this context, on July 8" 2015 the Greek Government submitted a request for 3-year financial
assistance to the European Stability Mechanism ("ESM”). On July 12 2015 the Euro Summit issued a
relative statement according to which the Greek Government must legislate a first set of measures as
a prerequisite (“prior actions”) for the opening of negotiations aiming to agree and finalize a new
bailout program under the ESM. The Greek Parliament on July 15" and 23" approved part of the prior
actions set by the European Parliament. On July 28" discussions about the preparation of a new
bailout program started and on August 14" the Eurogroup validated the agreement on the 3-year

financial assistance program to Greece, of total amount € 86 billion.

Under the context of the financial environment constantly formed by the aforementioned facts, many
risks arise the more important of which are related to liquidity of the financial system and companies,
collectability of receivables, impairment of assets, income recognition, current debt settlement or/and
satisfaction of terms and financial ratios, deferred tax assets recoverability, valuation of financial
instruments, provisions adequacy and the possibility of continuation of the unrestricted operation of

companies.

The aforementioned conditions and possible further adverse developments in Greece, may affect
negatively the results of operation and financial position of the Companies and their subsidiaries

(Group), in a way that cannot be precisely valued at the present moment.

Under this context, the Group monitors and continually assesses developments and informs investors
regarding every possible impact that the constantly formed conditions may have on its operation,

financial position and results.

a) Financial Risk Management
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The Group is exposed to financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The management of risk is achieved by the central Treasury department, which operates
using specific guidelines set by the Board of Directors. The Treasury department identifies, determines
and hedges the financial risks in cooperation with the Groups’ subsidiaries that face these risks. The
Board of Directors provides written instructions and directions for the general management of the risk,
as well as specific instructions for the management of specific risks such as foreign exchange risk,

interest rate risk and credit risk.
Foreign Exchange Risk:

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from transactions in foreign currencies (RON,
USD, TRY, SEK) with suppliers which invoice the Group in currencies other than the local. The
percentage of the balance of suppliers in currency other than the publication currency (euro) is
15,36% of the total. The Group, in order to minimize the foreign exchange risk, according to the

needs, in certain cases pre - purchases foreign currencies.
Credit risks:

The Group has diminuated the credit risk due to the disinvestment in the segment of wholesale trading
of electrical equipment and the focus in retail segments where the payment of goods is mainly made

by cash in hand or by pre-paid credit cards.
Interest rate risk/liquidity:

The Group is subject to cash flow risk which in the case of possible variable interest rates fluctuation,
may affect positively or negatively the cash inflows or outflows related to the Group’s assets or
liabilities.

Cash flow risk is minimized via the availability of adequate credit lines and cash. Also, the Group has

entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS) contracts in order to face interest rate risk.
Fair value of investment property:

The Management of the Group took into consideration the current conditions and considers that fair

value of investment property is consistent with their recognition value.

Fair value of assets:

Regarding the investments to subsidiaries in separate Financial Statements, the Management of the
Group, has examined the existence of impairment indications. Therefore an impairment need in the
investment of the Company in the subsidiary GENCO TRADE SRL came up of amount € 535 th. and is

included in depreciation/amortisation of administrative expenses.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets:

There are no other commitments and contingent liabilities that can affect the financial condition and
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results of the Group.
b) Legal Issues

There are no litigations or legal issues that might have a material impact on the Company and the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2015.

5. Segment Information

The Group is active on the following four operating segments:

e Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Households Goods (IKEA stores).
e Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT and TAF stores).
e  Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment (SERVICE ONE).

Therefore the main financial interest is concentrated on the business classification of the Group’s
activities, where the various economic environments constitute different risks and rewards. The
Group's activities comprise mainly one geographical area, that of the wider European region, primarily

in Greece along with countries of Southeastern Europe (Romania, Bulgaria, Cyprus and Turkey).

The Group's sales revenue in 2015 arise 65% from activities in Greece (67% in 2014) with the
remaining 35% arising from the other countries of Southeastern Europe (33% in 2014). Revenue of
the Company concern intrasegment transactions and are eliminated at the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Historically, the consumers’ demand for the Group products increases during the last four

months of the year.

Group results by operating segment for the year 2015 are analysed below:
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Revenue ) .

Cost of Goods Sold 1.7 ! 0

Gross Proft 108630 61448 ) 526 (5 10888 126 0 126 171084
Other operating inoome 307 ) 2 % (10%)  35% 304 @ m 380
Distribuion expenses B435)  40005)  (403) 0 1% (12638  (2450) 8 M (15080
Administrative expenses {10.212) (5221) = 2755) 885 {18.770) (8s52) 67 (785) (19.555)
Other operating expenses (538) @210) (141) m 7 (883 (11§) 0 (11§ (998)
Operating Profit / Loss) 1650 680 41 (4 W 2 (2989 6 @s4) 1928
Total finance income 25 810 ¢ 0 0 1085 " 0 1 1.066
Total finance cost (9.558) (4.817) (m 2 0 (4N5) =2 0 @S (4]
e Sl 0 469) 0 0 (2860 0 0 0 (2860
Profi / (Loss) before Tax 4S’®  28% @27 (149 3w sm Q Qw257
Degreciation/Amorssation 896 408 M 02 =0 13300 ) y 3™ 1330

Group results by operating segment for the year 2014 are analysed below:

Ravenue 5/, - 5. 158 |, 555 5. | A 13.370
Cost of Goods Sokd (167.953)  (62826)  (4M1) (3208 3210 (234319) (14629 27 (M505) (48814)
Gross Proft 00301 5958 1A% 548 (846 161051 3299 6 3304 164458
Other operating income 6604 662 51 7 @41 2881 1268 0 1205 91
Dsstibution axpanses (81.189)  (47.47) (452) 0 M (14NE (5782) 3 (5750) (139874)
Administrative expenses (9608)  (5451)  (1008) (10.718) 4658 (2157)  (39%9) 20 (3660)  (25817)
Other operating expenses (330) (160) (571) (1 3 (1,068) (1.155) 0 (1.155) (2223)
Operating Profit/ (Loss) 9.949 1.2 (149) (9.404) 4.046 1672 (6.262) 28 (6.004) 5,688
Total finance income 191 1024 0 8 0 12 () 0 87 1320
Total finance cost (9507)  (3944) (19) (40) 0 (19 @16 0 (918)  (14.425)
Fooonm b oo SO 0 0 0 o (1700 0 0 0 (10
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (1067) 4310 (166)  (9436) 406 (2315 (210 78 (6823)  (9.13))
Depreciation/ Amortisation 9717 3600 9 8669 (4925) 10057 248 0 2480 20240

Discontinued operation refers to the operating segment of wholesale trading of electrical equipment
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and the retail trading of fashion activity.

The breakdown structure of assets and liabilities as of 31/12/2015 and 31/12/2014 are as below:

Furniture and

Electrical

FOURLIS

Consolidation

Ho;:g::ld Sporting Goods  Fashion Activity Equipment HOLDINGS Entries Total Group
2015 2014 2015 2014 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Total Asssls NG WS WU RS 122 188 266 82633 A0 BRME  (R48))  4B450 474
Totd Lihiizs BB W BAE B3l 91 1172 4% 1472 12 2% [Ny 3y Ml
Transactions between the Group companies are based on the arm’s length principle.
6. Analysis of expenses and other operating income
(a) The expenses are presented in the financial statements as follows:
O 'Opihog H ETaipeia
2015 2014 2015 2014
Distribution expenses 123415 128,305 0 0
Administrative expenses 18.318 18.068 2.142 2049
Depreciation/Amortusation (Distnbution) 11.664 11.566 0 0
Deprecistion/Amortisation (Adminstration) 1.237 7.748 2 8.666
Expenses in Cost of Goods Sold 3.223 2.840 3.460 3.208
DepreciationVAmonisation 439 g21 0 0
Other operating expensos 998 2.223 1 1
Total 159.295 171.675 6.206 13.927

In Depreciation / Amortisation of the Company for the year 2015, the amount of € 535 thousand

(2014: € 8.604 thousand) is included in administrative expenses as impairment loss (Note 10).

The main categories of expenses are analysed below:

Payroll expenses

Third party expenses (Royalties,
Leasing, Energy eic)

Taxes.duties
Depreciation/Amonisation

Miscellanecus expenses(Advertising,
Warehousing, Transportation etc)

Total
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GROUP COMPANY

2015 2014 2015 2014
62.306 62.891 3,885 3673
57.743 69.632 ™ 700
23719 2.3561 5 3
13.340 20.240 602 8,669
23.527 26.561 883 883
150,205 171.675 6.206 13.927
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Payroll expenses are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Salaries and wages 48 330 48455 3012 272
Social security contributions 10.446 10.868 579 574
Miscelianeous grants 3430 3567 334 KL
Total 62.306 62.881 3885 361
(b) Other operating income is analysed as follows:
GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014

Co-advertisement income 27 4,253 0 0
Recycling income 3 391 0 0
Subsidies Law 3256/04 236 406 0 0
Management Fees 3 0 0 0
Revenue from non-used provisions 592 1.602 47 154
Fixed Assets Gain 50 4 0 0
Income from provisions of previous

yours 0 250 0 0
Other income 2.896 2,220 746 613
Total 3.807 9.126 792 767

In other income of the year 2015, € 1.615 thousand are included (2014: € 968 thousand) mainly due

to income from orders delivery charges and rents receivable of Group’s subsidiary.

(c) Net Financial Results are analyzed as follows:

|merest - expenses
Credit Card fees
Foreign exchange difierences (expense) -realzed-

Lossas from sale of Equity Investments

Total finance cost

Imerest and related income
Foreign exchange differences (income) -realized-

Gain from sale of Equity Investments

Total finance income

Financial Resut

GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 215 2014

19.047) (6.607) 0 0
(4 50%) (4,064) (2) (40)
{1.252) (754) (1) 0
(49) 0 0 0
(14.857) (14.425) (2) (40)
93 199 0 8
805 1121 0 0
169 0 0 0
1.066 1.320 0 8
(13.891) (13,105) (2) (32)
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(d) The expenses from associate companies for the years 2015 and 2014 refer to the share of losses
with the associate company VYNER LTD and SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD, which are

incorporated in the consolidated financial statements by applying the equity method of accounting.

7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment for the year 2015 are analyzed as follows:

Acqulsition cost ot 31122014
Acoumymted deprecigion'amonisston 31122014

Nt ook viskae o 31,12 2014
1131122018
Addtions

Other changes i acquisition cost

Dagrecaiondmontsainn
Other Dagreceton chinges

Acquisition cost af 31,12.2018

Accumuigted Gepreciation #131,12.2015
Net book virkse o1 31.12 2015

GROUP
Machinery-Instala Fumtwsand Total of Property
gm;’ sons-Misoslianeo  Motor vehicles miscallansous e plant and
’ s equipmant oqupmant prepes a3upment

%518 208430 5045 5060 4537 /7] ses
0 (56,804 (3502) (3.550) 13 600) 0 (08 (45)
B8 140.838 2083 18502 1778 (F 7, 24987
0 418 &m U 2T 0 125m

0 263 &% i )
0 T 8 456) 0 00y
0 2128 2 25 L33 0 343
5617 28573 10810 5 {158 14 3084 D049
0 (82.005) (4.470) {3.748) (35 667) 0 (905.907)
s61 148478 5346 1200 11047 1084 24551

Additions in the Property, Plant and Equipment for the period refer to the purchase of stores

equipment and formation expenses for the retail segment (new and existing) of Furniture and

Household Goods and Sporting Goods.

On 23/7/2015 the IKEA Pick up Point in Varna of Bulgaria began its operation.

Most considerable additions in property, plant and equipment in the year 2015 refer to:

a) property, plant and buildings installations of amount € 2,2 million for IKEA stores, € 1,6 million
for INTERSPORT and TAF stores and € 0,6 million for TRADE LOGISTICS.

b) machinery —

installations, furniture and miscellaneous equipment of amount € 1,8 million for

IKEA stores, € 5,4 million for INTERSPORT and TAF stores and supply chain center (robotic
warehouse of INTERSPORT and TAF stores) and € 0,5 million for TRADE LOGISTICS.

Other changes in acquisition cost are related to write-offs and sales of assets.

Property Plant and Equipment of the group also include subsidiaries’ finance leasing amounted at €
30.886 thousand (31/12/2014: € 27.969 thousand). In the year 2015 a subsidiary company proceeded

to the purchase of equipment through finance leasing of amount € 3.246 thousand.
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The average interest rate of the financial lease was 5,53% for the year 2015 (2014: 6,20%).

Depreciation/ Amortization of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets of total amount €
13.340 thousand, was registered in Cost of Sales by the amount of € 439 thousand, in Distribution
Expenses by the amount of € 11.664 thousand and in Administrative Expenses by the amount of €
1.237 thousand.

8. Investment property

Investment property for the year 2015 is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 312204 Jnzreos nazoa

Opening 17.163 7798 0 0
Acditions 0 10 914 0 0
Impasmont 0 . e 0 0
Closing Balance 17.163 17.163 0 0

The amount of € 17,2 million (2014: € 17,2 million) concerns:

e Part of property of a Group’s subsidiary, operating in real estate segment, of amount € 8,1 million
(2014: € 8,1 million),

e Exploitation property due to disinvestment of a Group’s subsidiary, of amount € 5,7 million which

was transferred from Property Plant and Equipment,

e  Property of value € 3,4 million of a Group’s subsidiary which was transferred from Property Plant

and Equipment due to leasing of premises for trading operation.

The assumptions of the assessments effectuated by independent appraisers in the year 2014 for the
investment property of the group of the year 2015 were confirmed. More specifically, the assessments
of fair value were performed by Savills Hellas in accordance with the Valuation Standard V.S. 1.5&1.6
of RICS Valuation Standard prescribed by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. For the
calculation of the fair value the Investment Method was used, according to which the investment
property value is calculated by capitalizing the real and future leasing that it creates. The valuation of

fair value method was ranked at level 3 of the hierarchy.

The significant assumptions used for the retail stores that the subsidiary, operating in real estate,
leases are: Rent price/month €12/sqm, capitalization rate at the end of the leasing period 8% and
annual rent increase 2%. The significant assumptions used for the exploitation property due to
disinvestment (warehouse) were: Sale price/sqm €250/sqm and capitalization rate at the end of the

leasing period 11%.
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9. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are analyzed as follows:

Cost 31.12.2014

Accumulsted depreciation/amortisation 31,12.2014
Net book value at 31,12.2014

1.1-31,1220156

Additions

Other changes in acquistion cost
Depreciation/amortisation

Other Depreciation changes

Cost 31.12.2015

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation 31,12.2015
Net book value at 31,12.2015

Royalties Software Miscallaneous Total
8.947 9.721 3.608 22.365
(3.712 (6.589) (788 (11.088)
5235 3.132 2910 11.277
0 688 0 688
(75 (381) (364 819
(327 (628) (186) (1.438
75 298 70 442
8.872 10.028 3334 22233
(3.064 .29 (504) (12.086)
4,907 2810 2429 10,147

Royalties include the use of brand names (IKEA). Other changes in acquisition cost are related to

write-offs and sales of assets.

10. Investments in affiliates and associates

Investments are as analyzed as follows:

Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015

COMPANY
% %o
COUNTRY
SHAREHOLDING 31/12/2015 | SHAREHOLDING 31/12/2014
2015 2014

SUBSIDIARIES
GENCO TRADE SRL Romania 1,57% 367 1,78% 903
HOUSEMARKET SA Greece 100% 38.740 100% 38.740
FOURLIS TRADE SA Greece 100% 23.216 100% 23.216
INTERSPORT

Greece 100% 15.664 100% 15.664
ATHLETICS SA
ASSOCIATE
SPEEDEX SA Greece 49,55% - 49,55% -
STOCK OPTION 1.643 1.243
TOTAL 79.630 79.765
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Operation of each company is analysed in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.

On 31/12/2015 an impairment test was performed to those investments of the Company which
appeared impairment indications (decrease of the shareholding in GENCO TRADE SRL) and an amount
of € 535 thousand was recognized by implementing the shareholding in net equity as a valuation
method. The investment in GENCO TRADE SRL until 28/5/2012 belonged by 100% to the parent
company. The share capital increases that followed were totally covered by the 100% shareholder
subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. and therefore at the end of the year the shareholding of the
parent was formed at 1,57% and the shareholding of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. at 98,43%.

Associated companies SPEEDEX SA, VYNER LTD and SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD have been
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group through the application of the equity
method. WYLDES LTD (100% subsidiary of HOUSEMARKET SA) has a 50% participation shareholding
in VYNER LTD and a 50% participation shareholding in SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD. After
applying the equity method, a loss of € 2.391 thousand was recognised in the consolidated income
statement under “Contribution to associate companies losses" with a corresponding decrease in the
carrying value of the investments in associates. Further differentiation of the investment value is due
to the increase of the share capital of the associate SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD of amount €
765 thousand.

The Summary financial information of SPEEDEX SA is as follows:

Country of Total Total
Company establishment Assets Liabilities Income Profits Shareholding
2015 Greece 16.913 21.238 29.700 827 49,553%
2014 Greece 19.005 24.440 29.020 150 49,553%

The consolidated financial information of VYNER LTD is as follows:

Country of Total Total
Company establishment Assets Liabilities Income Losses Shareholding
2015 Cyprus 136.512 95.430 9.148 (6.496) 50,00%
2014 Cyprus 128.625 96.390 851 (3.105) 50,00%

The consolidated financial information of SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPISES LTD is as follows:

Country of Total Total
Company establishment Assets Liabilities Income Losses Shareholding
2015 Cyprus 4.137 208 134 (6) 50,00%
2014 Cyprus 3.554 1.136 22 (148) 50,00%

In relation to the associate company SPEEDEX SA, according to IAS 28, if the investor’s share in the
associate’s losses equals or exceeds the carrying value of the investment, the investor does not

recognize a further loss. Such unrecognised losses amount to € 2.143 thousand for the year 2015 and
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€ 2.530 thousand for the year 2014.

In relation to the associate company VYNER LTD, we note that in November 2014 the investment of

construction and operation of the shopping center in Sofia Bulgaria was completed and is accounted in

Investment affiliates and associates.

11. Inventory

Inventory is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 NM22014 3111272015 31122014
Inventory 75467 83.112 0 0
Advances for purchases of merchandise 2878 2.858 0 0
Total 78.346 85.970 0 0

The inventory cost of the Group which was recorded as an expense under cost of goods sold amounts
to € 239.336 thousand (2014: € 237.750 thousand). The inventory value that was written off within
the financial year was € 2.142 thousand (2014: € 1.610 thousand). An impairment provision for idle

and slow moving inventory has been recognised and amounts to € 739 thousand (2014: € 309

thousand). A mortgage contract was held regarding the inventory of a subsidiary until the amount of €

25.000 thousand for the improvement of the credit terms.

12. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 311272014 31122015 31122014
Trade racevables 1021 17.804 901 815
Cheques recevadles 272 1429 0 0
Bad Debt Provisions (6.680) 5 S84 0 0
Total 3 803 13.666 901 315

Trade Receivables in 2015 include a customer balance of amount € 523 thousand (2014: € 2.515

thousand) which composes 13,75% of the total Trade Receivables balance.

The movement of the provision for bad debt receivables for 2015 and 2014 is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 31122014 31122015 311272014
Opening Balance (5.568 65.341) 0 0
Reversal of provsions 376 s21 0 0
Provision (1.496 252 0 0
Closing Balance (6.680) (5.568) 0 0
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As at December 31, 2015 and 2014 the ageing of trade receivables is analyzed as follows:

Not due and not impalired trade  Overdue but not Impaired trade

Tota| recelvables recelvables

2015 3.803 1.113 2.690
2014 13.666 12.689 977
13. Other receivables
Other receivables are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

311212015 3111212014 311212015 311272014

Debited VAT 2.041 3.345 0 0
Credit Cards receivable 3.978 6.602 0 0
Other debtors 10,518 8.7 35 11
Total 16.537 18.718 35 11

On 31/12/2015, other debtors include an amount of € 2.856 thousand (2014: € 1.937 thousand) as
receivables for the submission of administrative appraisal of a subsidiary and total payment of the
main tax amount less the corresponding additional taxes and surcharges. Furthermore, accruals of
amount € 3.435 thousand and suppliers advances of amount € 368 thousand (2014: accruals of
amount € 3.500 thousand and suppliers advances of amount € 703 thousand) are included in other

debtors.

14. Cash

Cash represents the Group’s and the Company’s cash in hand as well as bank deposits available on

demand and is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 31122014 311272015 311272014
Cash in hand 23681 2032 0 1
Bank Deposits 22499 32 855 65 625
Total 24 860 34 888 65 626

15. Investments / Financial data available for sale

A subsidiary of the Group participated in the recapitalization of the Greek Banks which took place
within the year and on 31/12/2015 the shares held in its portfolio were valuated at the amount of €
3.336 thousand. The valuation loss that was recognized on 31/12/2015 in net equity was of amount €
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264 thousand. The valuation method of Investments/ Financial data available for sale was ranked at

level 1 of the hierarchy.

16. Share capital

On 31/12/2015 the share capital of the Company amounted to € 54.561.784,54 divided into

50.992.322 nominal shares of nominal value € 1,07 per share (Note 1).

On 31/12/2014 the share capital of the Company amounted to € 54.561.784,54 divided into

50.992.322 nominal shares of nominal value € 1,07 per share.

Evolution and coverage of share capital of the Company since its composition are analyzed as follows:

TABLE OF CAPITAL EVOLUTION (amounts in euros)

Amount of increase

By
capitalization
Date of of reserves = New Share Capital Nominal
Government goodwill
General Gazette No Cash assets - shares Shares total after the value per
Assembly . Payments . total increase share
Difference of
share
premium
account
Founding 618/13.6.66 514.673,51 - 5.000 5.000 14.673,51 2,93
Capital
27/7/1968 930/23.8.68 - 514.673,51 5.000 10.000 29.347,03 2,93
29/11/1971 1978/20.12.71 - 58.694,06 20.000 30.000 88.041,09 2,93
27/6/1975 2233/15.10.75 - 17.608,22 6.000 36.000 105.649,30 2,93
11/10/1982 4007/11.11.82 3,00 109.461,42 37.300 73.300 215.113,72 2,93
19/2/1988 446/17.3.88 528.246,52 1.897.872,34 2.926.700 3.000.000 2.641.232,58 0,88
24/6/1989 4336/29.12.89 - 264.123,26 300.000 3.300.000 2.905.355,83 0,88
21/12/1992 228/21.1.93 - 290.535,58 330.000 3.630.000 3.195.891,42 0,88
11/6/1994 2985/17.6.94 479.383,71 3.195.891,42 4.174.500 7.804.500 6.871.166,54 0,88
27/6/1998 5395/7.7.98 - 5.496.933,24 6.243.600 14.048.100 12.368.099,78 0,88
5/3/1999 1572/22.3.99 6.648.774,76 - 7.551.900 21.600.000 19.016.874,54 0,88
23/6/2000 7051/25.7.00 3.847.395,45 - 4.370.000 25.970.000 22.864.269,99 0,88
22/6/2001 5916/11.7.01 - 3.105.730,01 - 25.970.000 25.970.000,00 1,00
21/6/2002 6897/8.7.02 - 25.970.000,00  25.970.000 51.940.000 51.940.000,00 1,00
20/6/2003  12169/4.11.03 Cance”at'oghz?zsoso of own - 50.952.920 50.952.920,00 1,00
10/6/2011 99/19.1.11 39.402,00 - 39.402 50.992.322 50.992.322,00 1,00
Share capital increase
3.569.462.54 by capitalization of
13/6/2014 243951/3.9.14 tax free reserves 3.297.339,74 - 50.992.322 54.561.784,54 1,07
and share premium differences
272.122,08
Total 50.992.322 54.561.784,54 1,07
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17. Reserves

The movement of the reserves is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
3112205 322014 31122005 31122004

Statutory Resarves 16.503 16.368 6.686 6.686
Revaluation Resernves 722 753 0 0
Foreign exchange diff from Statement of Financial Posttion

ransi resarves 4 280 2838 0 0
Extraordinary Reserves 17648 17573 6970 6970
SOP Reserve 1223 718 1223 718
Purchase of own shares 0 0 0 0
IRS Resarve 172 201 0 0
Total 31646 32372 14879 14374

Statutory Reserve: In accordance with the provisions of Greek company law, the creation of a
statutory reserve, through the transfer of the 5% of the annual after tax profits, is mandatory up until
the reserve reaches 1/3 of the share capital. The statutory reserve is only distributable upon

dissolution of the Company, it may however be used to set - off accumulated losses.

Tax Free Reserves: The Group has a Tax Free Reserve of € 4.052 thousand (2014: € 4.052 thousand),
which was mainly derived from interest of deposits or bonds. In the case of distribution or
capitalisation the reserves will be taxed with the official tax rate declared by the L4172/2013 (Note
23).

Exchange Differences from subsidiaries accounts conversion: This reserve is comprised from the
foreign exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the financial statements of Subsidiaries

which have a different functional currency from the parent company.

Cash Flow Hedging reserve: The hedging reserve comprises of the effective portion of the cumulative

net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments (IRS).

18. Dividends

The Shareholders General Assembly dated on 19/6/2015 did not propose a dividend distribution for
the year 1/1 — 31/12/2014 taking into consideration the financial results of this period.

Taking into account not only the development projects of the Company funding needs, but also the
general economic environment, the Board of Directors will propose to the Annual General Assembly of
Shareholders of 2016, not to distribute any dividend.
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19. Employee retirement benefits
19.1 Liabilities due to termination of service

The obligation of employee compensation due to termination of service (Law 2112/20, 4093/12 for
Greek Companies, Bulgarian Labor Law for Bulgarian Companies and Labor Law 1475 for Turkish
Company) appears in the Financial Statements in compliance with IAS 19 and is based on an actuarial
study elaborated by AON Hewitt on December 31%,2015. The obligation for employee compensation
due to termination of service was affected in 2013 by the provisions of Law 4093/12, according to
which the maximum level of compulsory compensation of which the employee is entitled in case of

dismissal or retirement, has decreased.

Basic assumptions of the actuarial study for Greece are the following:

Greek Companies 2015 2014

Average annual payroll increase 1,00% 1,00%
Discount interest rate 1,86% - 2,74% | 1,57% - 2,25%
Inflation 1,00% 1,00%
Plan duration (years) 10-24 12-25

In case of an average annual payroll increase by 0,50% (namely 1,50%), the amount of liabilities due
to termination of service of Greek companies would increase from 5,01% to 12,27%. In case of a
discount rate increase by 0,50%, the amount of liabilities due to termination of service of Greek

companies would decrease from 4,71% to 11,05%.

Bulgarian Companies 2015 2014

Average annual payroll increase 3,50% 3,50%
Discount interest rate 2,36% 2,61%
Inflation 2,00% 2,00%
Plan duration (years) 24-31 25

In case of an average annual payroll increase by 0,50% (namely 4,00%), the amount of liabilities due
to termination of service of Bulgarian companies would increase from 12,41% to 16,12%. In case of a
discount rate increase by 0,50% (namely 2,86%), the amount of liabilities due to termination of

service of Bulgarian companies would decrease from 11,00% to 13,98%.

Turkish Companies 2015 2014

Average annual payroll increase 7,10% 7,10%
Discount interest rate 11% 9,00%
Inflation 5,10% 5,10%
Plan duration (years) 23 24
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In case of an average annual payroll increase by 0,50% (namely 5,60%), the amount of liabilities due
to termination of service would increase by 11,00% for INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS
TICARET A.S. In case of a discount rate increase by 0,50% (namely 11,50%), the amount of liabilities
due to termination of service would decrease by 10,00% for INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE
DIS TICARET A.S. In the analysis of sensitivity of Turkey, a reference is made to the inflation rate and
not to compensation increase because benefits in Turkey are subject to a maximum salary (plafond)

and an increase/decrease of inflation will affect the maximum salary.

The expense derived from the compensation to employees due to retirement, that was recorded in the

Income Statement of the financial year 2015 is analysed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
311272015 31122014 31122015 31122014
Servce Cost 307 237 26 21
nerest Cost 81 B8 6 a8
Cost reducton/settlementtermination service 2 634 18 3
Total amount allocated in Income statement 822 959 51 31
Baance of lability at the beginning 3.097 2.357 300 218
Compensation due to retirement 622 a59 51 3
Paxd amounts 359) (B5G (7 0
Actuarial gainsfosses 275) 655 1 51
Ba'ance of labllity in the end 3.086 3.104 334 300

19.2 Share based payments

The Extraordinary General Assembly of the Company of September 27, 2013, in the context of Stock
Option Plan, approved the disposal of 1.507.678 stock options. The program will be implemented in
three waves, with a maturity period of three years per wave. Options should be exercised within five
years since their maturity date. In case that, after the grant some of the options remain undisposed,
those options will be cancelled. The option grant price of each wave is the market closing price on the

day of Extraordinary General Assembly’s resolution regarding the approval of the program.

On 25/11/2013 the board of Directors granted 502.550 stock options, which are the first of the three
waves. The underlying share price, to which conferred options reflect, is determined at the amount of
3,4 € per share which is the closing stock price of the share on the date of the Extraordinary General
Assembly.

The options of the wave mentioned above are granted within three years as follows:

Vesting Date No of Options
31/12/2013 167.517
31/12/2014 167.517
31/12/2015 167.516
87

Annual Financial Report for the period 1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015



FOURLIS

GROUP OF CONPANIES

The Fair value of options has been calculated based on the simulation of the Company’s share price
assuming that the price will develop to the Geometric Brown Motion model. Fair value per option and

vesting date has been defined as follows:

Vesting Date Value per Option €
31/12/2013 0,8589
31/12/2014 1,2718
31/12/2015 1,5701

The variables upon which the data above were calculated are as follows:

Variable Value
Exercise Price €34
Grant Date 27/9/2013
Volatility 62,47%
Dividend Yield 0%
Attrition Rate 10%
Risk Free Rate 1,5114%

On 24/11/2014 the board of Directors granted 502.550 stock options, which are the first of the three
waves. The underlying share price, to which conferred options reflect, is determined at the amount of
3,4 € per share which is the closing stock price of the share on the date of the Extraordinary General

Assembly.

The options of the wave mentioned above are granted within three years as follows:

Vesting Date No of Options
31/12/2014 167.517
31/12/2015 167.517
31/12/2016 167.516

The Fair value of options has been calculated based on the simulation of the Company’s share price
assuming that the price will develop to the Geometric Brown Motion model. Fair value per option and

vesting date has been defined as follows:

Vesting Date Value per Option €
31/12/2014 0,8030
31/12/2015 1,3464
31/12/2016 1,6540

The variables upon which the data above were calculated are as follows:

Variable Value
Exercise Price €34
Grant Date 24/11/2014
Volatility 44,56%
Dividend Yield 0%
Attrition Rate 10%
Risk Free Rate 1,8416%

During the period 1/1 — 31/12/2014, no stock option granted by the first wave of SOP was exercised.

On 23/11/2015 the board of Directors granted 502.578 stock options, which are the third of the three
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waves. The underlying share price, to which conferred options reflect, is determined at the amount of
3,4 € per share which is the closing stock price of the share on the date of the Extraordinary General

Assembly.

The options of the aforementioned wave are vested in 3 years as follows:

Vesting Date No of options
31/12/2015 167.517
31/12/2016 167.517
31/12/2017 167.544

The Fair value of options has been calculated based on the simulation of the Company’s share price
assuming that the price will develop to the Geometric Brown Motion model. Fair value per option and
vesting date has been defined as follows:

Vesting Date Value per Option €
31/12/2015 0,6669
31/12/2016 0,7441
31/12/2017 0,9384

The variables upon which the data above were calculated are as follows:

Variable Value
Exercise Price € 3,40
Grant Date 23/11/2015
Volatility 61,52%
Dividend Yield 0,00%
Attrition Rate 10%
Risk Free Rate 2,0334%

During the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015, no stock option granted by the first and second wave of SOP was

exercised.

During the period 1/1 — 31/12/2015, an amount of € 505.205 (2014: € 450.843) was recorded in the

Consolidated Income Statement as an expense and regards all three waves of the program.
19.3 Benefit contributions under the private insurance program

During the year ended on December 31, 2015 the amount of defined benefit contributions under the
private insurance program that was recorded as an expense by the parent Company totalled to € 199
thousand (2014: € 201 thousand) while the respective amount recorded as an expense by the Group
amounted to € 457 thousand (2014: € 446 thousand).

20. Financial Instruments and Risk Management Policies
20.1 Credit Risk
Exposure to Credit Risk

The Group has significantly reduced its exposure to credit risk due to the disinvestment of the
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Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment segment and the focus in the retail segments where the
payment of goods is mainly made by cash or credit cards discounts. The maximum exposure at

31/12/2015, without taking into consideration any hedging or insurance strategies, was as follows:

Book Value
2015 2014
€000s
Trade & other receivables 3.803 13,666
Cash & cash equivalent 24.860 34.888

The maximum exposure to credit risk on trade receivables of the Group without taking into
consideration any hedging or insurance strategies at the date of the Statement of Financial Position,

per geographic segment was as follows:

Book Value
2015 2014
€000s
Greece 3.563 13.266
Southeastern Europe Countries 240 399

The maximum exposure at the date of the Statement of Financial Position, per customer type was:

Book Value
2015 2014
C000s
Wholesale trade customers 3.803 13.536
Retail trade customers 0 130

20.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is retained at low levels by maintaining adequate bank credit lines and significant cash
and cash equivalents which on 31/12/2015 amounted to € 24,9 million for the Group vs € 34,9 million
on 31/12/2014. During year 2015, the Group succeeded to maintain the improved credit terms from its

main suppliers.

The contractual loan dues including interest payments, excluding the net - off agreements, are as per
paragraph Borrowings, while for Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities are less than 12 months.
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Immediate More than 5

tarmination 3 months 3w12months 1toSyears years Total
2015
Credit knes 3522 0 6.560 0 0 10.082
Shon-term loans 73 4900 20.757 0 0 25.729
Long-@rm loans 0 2.326 14 959 91,680 0 108 965
Leasing 40 628 2133 2074 0 4875
Total 3.635 7.854 44 408 893.754 0 145.850
2014
Credt knes 2756 0 5398 0 0 8154
Short-term vans 388 4427 22492 0 0 27307
Long-term loans 2600 1120 13626 102,604 0 129 951
Leasing 0 543 1672 2305 0 4 520
Total 5.745 16.090 43188 104.909 0 165.932

20.3 Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising for its transactions in foreign currencies (RON,
USD, TRY, SEK). The percentage of the balance of suppliers in currency other than the publication
currency (euro) is 15,36% of the total. The Group, in order to minimize the foreign exchange risk, in

certain cases pre - purchases foreign currencies.

The Group has investments in companies overseas, the net assets of which are exposed to foreign
exchange risk. This type of foreign exchange risk (translation risk) arises due to the operations in
Romania (RON), Bulgaria (BGN) and Turkey (TRY). The Management has managed to reduce foreign
exchange risk, given the strong capital structure of the companies and to decrease borrowings in

currencies other than the local.

More particularly, approximately 90% of GENCO TRADE SRL (Romania) loans are in local currency
(RON) in an effort to avoid the exchange difference charges resulting from RON devaluating vs. the
Euro. In Bulgaria the local currency is pegged to the Euro (EUR/ BGN = 1.95583) a fact which can not
guarantee that in the case of a worsening situation this conversion ratio will remain constant. In

Turkey, the financing for commercial activity is in local currency, while for investments is in euro.
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31/12/2015 Foreign cumency in euro
UsD GBP CHF SEK RON TRY BGN EUR
Trade creditors and other
liabdties 319 0 0 455 7252 2434 0 4776
3171212014 Foreign currency in euro
usD GBP CHF SEK RON TRY BGN EUR
Trade crediors and other
liabdities 413 452 0 296 0 2204 0 3256
Sensitivity Analysis

A Euro revaluation of 10% at December 31, vs the below currencies would increase (decrease) the

Net Equity and the Operating Results as per the amounts indicated at the below summary. It is

assumed that all other variables (Interest Rates) would remain constant.The analysis was performed

in a similar manner for 2015.

Impact in €000s
Dec 31, 2015
usD

SEK

TRY

RON

TOTAL

Dec 31, 2014
usD

GBP

SEK

TRY

RON

TOTAL

Net Equity

32
46
243
725
1.046

41
45
30
220
829
1.165

Operating Result

32
46
243
725

1.046

41
45
30
220
829

1.165

A Euro devaluation of 10% at December 31, vs the aforementioned currencies would have an equal

but opposite impact in comparison to the ones presented above, based on the assumption that all the

other variables would remain constant.

The exchange rates of foreign currencies used for the conduction of the financial statements of the

year 2015, are presented at the table below:
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BS 31122015

TRY 3.1765

BGN 19558

RON 4 5240

PL 1172015 - 31122015
TRY 3.0255

BGN 1.9558

RON 4 4454

20.4 Interest Rate Fluctuation Exposure

Profile

The Group is subject to cash flow risk which in the case of possible variable interest rates fluctuation,
may affect positively or negatively the cash inflows or outflows related to the Group’s assets or
liabilities. Despite of the fact that we believe that in an environment of prolonged global slowdown,
the risk of rising interest rates remains low, the group has entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
contracts effectively converting part of the loans from floating to fixed interest rate for a period of 3 to

5 years.

The profile of Group’s loan liabilities at the date of the Statement of Financial Position is analysed in

paragraph Borrowings.
Sensitivity Analysis of fair value for financial instruments with a variable interest rate

A 1% fluctuation of the Group’s borrowing rate at December 31, would increase (decrease) the Net
Equity and the Operating Results by € 1.496 thousand for the year 2015 and € 1.699 thousand for the
year 2014.

Sensitivity Analysis of fair value for financial instruments with a fixed interest rate
No such Instruments (Assets/Liabilities) valued at fair value through income statement exist.

20.5 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of assets and liabilities (i.e. trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments,
borrowings and finance leases) approximate their fair value. The fair value of a financial instrument is
the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between two market participants at the measurement date. The fair values of the financial
instruments as of 31 December 2014 represent management’s best estimate. In situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date, the fair value
measurement reflects the Group’s own judgments about the assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability. Those judgments are developed by the Group based on the

best information available in the circumstances.
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
e Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market
data;

e Level 3: Assets or liabilities prices that are not corroborated by market data.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

e (Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables accounts: the
carrying amounts approximate their fair value either due to the short maturity of these

instruments or because there is no foreign currency risk exposure.

e  Borrowings: The carrying amount approximates their fair value mainly due to the fact that they

bear interest at floating rates and are denominated in local currency.

e Derivative financial instruments: The valuation method was determined by taking into
consideration all factors in order to determine precisely fair value, such as the current and the

prospective interest rates trend and the duration and falls into level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Within the year, there were neither moving between levels 1 and 2 nor moving inside and outside
level 3 during the measurement of fair value. Moreover, within the same year, there was no change in

the purpose of any financial asset which would lead to a different classification of this asset.

20.6 Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure and maintain strong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support the investment projects and maximizing the
return of invested capital for the shareholders.

The Group monitors its capital management through the use of a gearing ratio - net debt divided by
equity plus net debt - where net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings minus cash. The
Group’s strategic objective is to maintain the above ratio between 30% and 45%. On 31/12/2015 the
ratio stood at 44% (2014: 45%).

21. Borrowings

Borrowings for the year 2015 and 2014 are analyzed as follows:
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GROUP
3171272015 311122014

Non - current loans 108.965 129.951
Finance Leases 4.875 4.520
Total long term loans and short term portion of long term loans 113.839 134.471
Current portion of non-current loans and borrowings 17.285 27.347
Short-term portion of non-current Lease 2.801 2.215
Non - current loans 93.754 104 509
Short term loans for working capital 35.811 35.461
Total ioans and borrowings 148,650 169.832

The Company had no loan liabilities on 31/12/2015 and on 31/12/2014.

The maturity table of the Finance Lease Liability is as follows:

GROP
o au
Uptotyer  Z2.Spes  MoetranSymrs Tow Uolwer 2-5mn MateSm Too
Fulue Logsn Fymarny IR 1565 ¢ 5 L4 i 0 4
LS8 Inparest
Sresat Vaue of “are Legse Paymets 20 2014 ¢ 408 s X5 0 450

The repayment period of non - current loans varies between 2 to 5 years and the average effective
interest rate of the Group was 4,98% during the year 2015 (2014: 5,3%). Repayments and proceeds
of loans of the current period amounted to € 41.032 thousand and € 18.001 thousand respectively.

Non - current loans, including their part which is payable within 12 months, cover mainly the Group's

growth needs and are analyzed in bond, syndicated and other non - current loans as follows:
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Issuing
31/12/2015 Amount Duration
Date
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 7 years from the issuing date (€816
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 1.989 | 17/8/2011 payable forthcoming period)
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 6 years from the issuing date (€800
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 2.600 | 23/12/2013 payable forthcoming period)
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 6 years from the issuing date (€800
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 2.600 | 23/12/2013 payable forthcoming period)
7.189
Bond 9.000 | 4/11/2009 | 8 years from the issuing date
TRADE LOGISTICS SA In 2014 an extension was agreed
Bond 5.400 | 29/2/2012 | until February 2017 years (€1.600
payable forthcoming period)
14.400
2 years from the issuing date (an
RENTIS SA Bond 8.000 2/3/2013 extension was agreed until
20/1/2017)
Bond 2.300 | 20/1/2010 | 7 years from the issuing date
10.300
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD |  Syndicated 42.910 | 22/12/2011 | 7 Years from the issuing date (€7.980
payable forthcoming period)
42,910
INTERSPORT S.A. Bond 24.567 | 18/11/2014 | ° Years from the issuing date (€2.090
payable forthcoming period)
24.567
HOUSEMARKET SA Bond 9.600 | 21/2/2011 | &ears from the issuing date (€3.200
payable forthcoming period)
9.600
Total | 108.966
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Issuing
31/12/2014 Amount Duration
Date
In 2015 an extension was agreed
FOURLIS TRADE SA Bond 4.100 | 14/12/2009 | until 31/7/2015 due to discontinued
operation of the company
4.100
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 7 years from the issuing date (€720
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 2.765 | 17/8/2011 payable forthcoming period)
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 6 years from the issuing date (€800
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 3.400 | 23/12/2013 payable forthcoming period)
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 6 years from the issuing date (€800
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 3.400 | 23/12/2013 payable forthcoming period)
9.565
Bond 9.000 | 4/11/2009 | 8 years from the issuing date
TRADE LOGISTICS SA In 2014 an extension was agreed
Bond 7.000 | 29/2/2012 | until February 2017 years (€1.200
payable forthcoming period)
16.000
RENTIS SA Bond 8.000 | 2/3/2013 | 2Years from the issuing date (an
extension was agreed for two years)
Bond 4.000 | 20/1/2010 | 7 years from the issuing date
12.000
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD |  Syndicated 48.830 | 22/12/2011 | 7 Years from the issuing date (€6.000
payable forthcoming period)
48.830
INTERSPORT S.A. Bond 26.656 | 18/11/2014 | °Years from the issuing date (€2.160
payable forthcoming period)
26.656
HOUSEMARKET SA Bond 12.800 | 21/2/2011 | & ears from the issuing date (€3.200
payable forthcoming period)
12.800
Total | 129.951

Non —current loans include:

a) The remaining finance lease liability of the company HOUSEMARKET S.A. through which the
Company financed the purchase of land and building on 27 December 2000 as well as the
improvements made on the building and the purchase of equipment for the first IKEA store in Greece
in Pylea Thessaloniki. The finance lease for the land and the building improvements expires on
December 2016.

b) The remaining finance lease liability of the company INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. through which it

financed the purchase of new mechanical equipment for warehousing and transportation of goods in
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the warehousing premises of the subsidiary company TRADE LOGISTICS S.A. on 29 September 2015.

The finance lease expires on September 2020.

Total short term loans of the Group include current loans and overdraft bank accounts which are used
for the Group’s working capital needs. The amounts drawn are used mainly to cover current
obligations to suppliers. The weighted average interest rate of short term loans for the period
1/1/2015 to 31/12/2015 was approximately 5,86% (2014: 6,3%). During the current period, Interest
Rate Swaps or IRSs continue to exist, in order to mitigate the risk of subsidiaries of a sudden increase

in interest rates in the interbank market.
The terms of the swap agreements are as follows:

e 5Syear financial product (IRS) that hedges interest rate risk through the exchange of fixed/
floating rate for nominal amount of 5 million euros, with a negative fair value for HOUSE
MARKET BULGARIA AD on 31/12/2015 of € 191 thousand (31/12/2014: € 224 thousand).

Some of Group’s loans include loan covenants. On 31/12/2015 the Group either complied with the

terms of the loans or had the approval to wave the right to calculate them.

The Group, having centralized its capital management, has the ability to directly identify, quantify,
manage and hedge, if necessary, its financial risks created by its operational activities so as to be
consistent to the changes in the economic environment. The Group continuously observes and
budgets its cash flow and acts appropriately in order to ensure open credit lines for covering current

capital needs.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of assets and liabilities (i.e. trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments,

borrowings and finance leases) approximate their fair value.

22. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are analyzed as follows:
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Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Other payables
Taxes lisbility
Customers advances

Insurance Organizations
Total

23. Income taxes

GROUP COMPANY
3M22015 31122014 31122015 31122014

79.963 88.176 145 156
6.165 5.744 422 326

1.181 1.087 7] 77
7.788 7.3% 175 175

1.583 1.556 119

2479 242 14 132
93.161 106.391 1.095 867

The nominal tax rates in the countries that the Group is operating vary between 10% and 29% for the

year, as follows:

Income Tax Rates
Country
(31/12/2015)
Greece 29,0%
Romania 16,0%
Bulgaria 10,0%
Cyprus 12,5%
Turkey 20,0%

In accordance with article 1 par. 4 of Law 4334/16.7.2015, tax rate of legal entities established in

Greece increased from 26% to 29% effective on the publication of the Government Gazette (namely

16/7/2015).

The parent company and its subsidiaries have not been audited by the tax authorities for the years

noted below:

COMPANY

FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA

FOURLIS TRADE SA

INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA

SERVICE ONE SA
GENCO TRADE SRL

GENCO BULGARIA EOOD

TRADE LOGISTICS SA
HOUSEMARKET SA
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2010 — 2015 (*)
2009 — 2015 (¥)
2008 — 2015 (*)
2010 — 2015 (%)
2007 — 2015
2008 - 2015
2010 — 2015 (*)
2011 — 2015 (%)
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HM HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD 2006 — 2015
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD 2008 - 2015
RENTIS SA 2010 - 2015 (*)
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD 2006 — 2015
WYLDES LTD 2009 - 2015
INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. 2011 - 2015

Assosiate companies have not been audited by the tax authorities for the years noted below:

COMPANY YEARS

VYNER LTD 2009 - 2015
SPEEDEX SA 2011 - 2015 (*)
SW SOFIA MALL ENTERPRISES LTD 2015

(*)For the fiscal years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 all companies of the Group located in Greece,
have been subjected to tax audit by Certified Audit Accountants in compliance with the provisions of
Article 82 par. 5 of Law 2238/1994 and received a Tax Compliance Certificate for fiscal years 2011,
2012, 2013 and 2014. Upon completion of the audit, no tax liabilities occurred, other than those
recorded in the financial statements. In order for the years 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 to be
considered integrated, provisions specified in par. 1a of Article 6 POL 1159/2011 should apply.

In September 2014 the tax audit for the financial years 2007-2010 for the subsidiary HOUSEMARKET
S.A. was completed and taxes of amount € 1.841 thousand, as well as fines and surcharges of amount
€ 2.022 thousand were assessed. On 24/10/2014 an administrative appeal was submitted, according
to art. 63 of the Law 4174/2013, seeking for the review of the assessment acts of the Tax Authorities,
and half of the amount disputed, i.e. € 1.937 thousand was paid. On 24/2/2015 the company was
informed of the decision of the Authority for the Settlement of Disputes, concerning the
aforementioned administrative appeal, which reduced the taxes assessed to € 1.632 thousand and the
fines and surcharges to € 1.761 thousand. On 3/4/2015 two appeals (concerning VAT and income tax)
were submitted to the Administrative Courts, against the decision of the Authority for the Settlement
of Disputes. On 29/4/2015, based on the L. 4321/2015, the full payment of the amount of the main
tax was made with a decrease of additional taxes and surcharges attributable. 22/9/2015 was the date
set for the discussion of the appeal of the subsidiary HOUSEMARKET SA in the Administrative Court of
Appeals, which was postponed for 1/12/2015. On 1/12/2015 the case was discussed at the
Administrative Court of Appeals and a resolution is expected. The Management estimates that any
potential liability may arise for the Group as a result of this subject, there will not be any significant

impact on the income statement, cash flows or total financial situation of the Group.

On 31/12/2015, the accumulated amount of tax provisions for the unaudited fiscal years of the
subsidiary HOUSE MARKET S.A. is € 1.609 thousand.

The income tax expense for the year 2015 and the relative year 2014 is as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
: 2015 2014

Income tax 1.990 1.904

Tax audk differences " 260

Tax N4172 tax free reserves 0 (626) 0 (626)
Deferred Taxes:

Differences of ficed assets 835 277 (4) (8)
Provisions for employee benefits 113 137 (4) 52
Finance leases 119 0 0 o
Supplier adustment 0 o 0 ¢]
Provisions {387) 1.116 (3) o
Accrued Taxes 383 (852 0 510)
Inventory Write Off Provision (242 113 0 o
Effect of changes on 1ax rates {(332) 0 (13) 0
Total Deferred taxes 263 790 (24) {565)
Income Tax Expense 2.265 2337 (24) (1.182)

The reconciliation between the nominal tax rate and the effective tax rate is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Profit before taxes 2517 9137 (1.430) (9.436)
income tax based on nominal tax rate 855 (83) (415 0
Tax on tax free income (265) 106) 0 0
Tax on ron deductdle expenses 593 275 0 0
Tax on ax losses 1.050 595 0 510
Non operating income tax 3 2 0 0
Wrie-off of recenables 415 961 415 0
Effect of Assets held for Sale 0 (8) 0 (8)
Miscellaneous timing differences (387) 1318 (24) s2
Tax L4172 tax free resarve 0 (626 0 (626
Tax in statement of comprehensive income 2265 2337 (24) (1.182)

Deferred taxes on 31/12/2015, which appear in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
compose income due to valuation of cash flow hedging at the fair value, amount to € 3 th. (€ 13 th.
on 31/12/2014) and income due to defined benefits plans, amount to € 62 th. (€ 178 th. on
31/12/2014).

Deferred taxes as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 which appear in other Financial

Statements are analysed as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
322015 31122014 31122015 31122004

Liabilties:

Deprecation Difference 3160 2.5% 0 0
Employee retirement benefits (572) (507) 0 0
Deferred Income tax (581) (565) 0
Expenses Provision (31) 0 0 0
Reclass of Revenue account 58 126 0 0
Impairment on reserves 0 (130) 0 0
Provision Other Expenses (342) (19) 0 0
Total 1.693 1498 0 0
Assets:

Depreciation calc, difference 207 608 1 (6)
Empioyee retirement benefits 301 297 104 93
Stock devaluation i 69 0 0
Provisions 9) 17 3 0
Provision for doubtful debts 893 495 0 0
Finance leases 210 323 0 0
Reclass of Revenue account 0 0 0 0
Deferred income tax 6.068 6436 680 680
Total 7.785 8.245 788 767

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between assets and liabilities tax recognition

and financial statements composition.

On 31/12/2015, the Group had accumulated carried forward tax losses in its subsidiaries on part of

which a provision was made for deferred tax asset of amount € 6.068 thousand as the Management
considered that the recognition criteria were met. For the part of tax losses on which a deferred tax
asset has been recognized, the Management estimates that they will be covered against taxable

profits before their expiration date.

Given that some of the Group companies have not been audited by the tax authorities for a few years,
as mentioned above, it is considered by the Group that adequate provisions for current and future tax

audit differences have been made. On 31/12/2015, the cumulative Group’s provision for unaudited tax
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years amounts to € 2.054 thousand (€ 2.054 th. on 31/12/2014) and to € 20 thousand for the
Company as at 31/12/2015 (€ 20 th. on 31/12/2014) which is displayed in Income Tax Payable.

24. Earnings/Losses per share
The basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the

weighted average number of shares during the period. The weighted average number of shares as at
31 December 2015 is 50.992.322.

GROUP
31/12/2015 311272014
(Loss)/Profit after tax attributable to owners of the parent 253 (11.475)
Number of issued shares 50.992.322 50,992.322
SOP Impact 1.005.019 586.308
Effect from purchase of own shares 0 0
r [ I

Weighted average number of shares 51.997.341 51.578.630
1' l: .-“l'.‘ |
Basic (Losses)/Earnings per Share (in Euro) 0,0050 (0, )
0,004 10,2225)

Diluted (Losses)/Earnings per Share (in Euro)

Discontinued operations

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Basic Earnings / Losses per Share (in Euro) (0,0538) (0,1710)
Diluted Earnings/ Losses per Share (in Euro) (0,0527) (0,1690)

25. Treasury Shares

On 31/12/2015, the Company does not hold treasury shares and no treasury shares program is

currently held.

26. Commitments and Contingencies
26.1 Commitments

The Group’s contingent liabilities for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2015 are analyzed as follows:

e The Company has issued letters of guarantee for the associate company’s loans and participation
in tenders amounting to € 9.830 th.

e The Company has issued letters of guarantee for its subsidiaries guaranteeing liabilities
amounting to € 121.838 th.

e The Parent Company has contracted as a guarantor with the amount of € 3.100 th. for future
leases and loan liabilities from investment of an associate company.

e Subsidiaries have issued letters of guarantee for the indirect subsidiaries guaranteeing liabilities
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amounting to € 33.337 th.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 14.400 th.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 55.175 th.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 25.200 th.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 32.500 th.

e A subsidiary of the Group, has contracted as guarantor through underwriting of its property for its
subsidiary guaranteeing liabilities amounting to € 15.000 th.

e A subsidiary of the Group has a contractual obligation of Inventory of at least € 25.000 th.

There are no litigation or arbitration proceedings that might have a material impact on the Group’s

Financial Statements.

26.2 Operating Lease

Group as Lessee: The Group has leasing contracts for plant and equipment in order to cover its
operating needs. This is accomplished through finance and operating leasing contracts. Concerning the

finance leasing contracts see above in paragraph 20 “Borrowings”.

Concerning operating leasing contracts, the total future dues for rents as below:

GROUP COMPANY
31122015 31122014 31122015 31122014
Up o 1 year 22.849 18.166 210 195
Between 1-5 years 79.480 68.877 910 807
More than 5 years 137.284 45642 502 632
Total 239.612 232.685 1.622 1.634

The expense for operating leasing of financial year 2015, that was recorded in the income statement
amounted to € 22.348 thousand (€ 21.978 thousand for the year 2014).

Group as Lessor: The future leasing contracts of the Group as a lessor amounts to € 2.245 thousand
until 1 year, € 9.054 thousand for 2 - 5 years, and 9.260 thousand for 5 years and up (2014: € 930
thousand until 1 year, € 5.718 thousand for 2 - 5 years, and € 3.337 thousand for 5 years and up).

26.3 Litigation

There are no litigation or arbitration proceedings as well as resolutions of judicial institutions

(paragraph 23) that might have a material impact on the assets of the Group’s companies.

27. Related parties

Related parties of the Group include the Company, subsidiary and associated companies, the
management and the first line managers. The parent company provides advice and services to its
subsidiaries in the areas of IT, HR, financial planning and controlling, treasury and social responsibility.
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The analysis of the related party receivables and payables as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as

follows:
31122015 3NN122014 31122015 31122014
FOURLIS TRADE SA 0 0 6 79
HOUSE MARKET SA 0 0 0 188
INTERSPORT SA 0 0 606 267
SERVICE ONE SA 0 0 11 9
TRADE LOGISTICS SA 0 0 13 K13
GENCO BULGARIA 0 0 16 37
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD 0 0 3 2
H.M. HOUSE MARKET (CYPRUS) LTD 0 0 14 8
SPEEDEX SA 7 0 7 0
RENTIS SA 0 0 2 2
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD 0 0 25 15
GENCO TRADE SRL 0 0 4 2
INTERSPORT ATLETIK 0 0 14 23
TRADE STATUS SA 160 108 157 104
Total 167 108 877 790
FOURLIS TRADE SA 0 0 0 0
HOUSE MARKET SA 0 0 125 5
INTERSPORT SA 0 0 0 7
SERVICE ONE SA 0 0 0 0
TRADE LOGISTICS SA 0 0 1 1
GENCO BULGARIA 0 0 0 0
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD 0 0 0 0
H.M. HOUSE MARKET (CYPRUS) LTD 0 0 0 0
SPEEDEX SA 137 152 1 2
RENTIS SA 0 0 0 0
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD 0 0 0 0
GENCO TRADE SRL 0 0 0 0
INTERSPORT ATLETIK 0 0 0 0
TRADE STATUS SA 1 0 0 0
Management Members 42 0 0 0
Total 180 152 127 15
Related party transactions as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue m 100 3.986 3.660
Other operating income 65 34 746 598
Total 176 135 4,732 4258
GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Administrative expenses 79 88 5 8
Distribution expenses 308 319 0 0
Other operating expenses 0 0 0 8]
Total 387 407 5 8
During 2015 and 2014, transactions and fees of management members were as follows:
GROUP COMPANY
2015 2014 2015 2014
Transactions and fees of management 2.658 2.805 488 491

members

There are no other transactions between the Group or the Company with the management. The

transactions with related parties are arm’s length.

28. Transactions with Subsidiaries

During financial years 2015 and 2014, between the parent company and its subsidiaries the following

transactions occurred:

GROUP
2015 2014

Revenue 24,724 17.432
Cost of Sales 19.3684 13.736
Other Income 1.984 1.435
Administrative expenses 4.682 3.689
Distribution expenses 2.568 8635

GROUP

31122015 31122014

Trade recevables 8,768 8.045
Inventory 272 213
Creditors 6.368 5.545
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2015 2014
3.884 3.660
3.460 3.208
725 508
12 29
0 0
COMPANY
31122015 31122014
702 686
0 0
126 13
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The Group has issued letters of guarantee for its subsidiary and associated companies guaranteeing
liabilities. The analysis of such letters of guarantee is disclosed in which appears in Note

«Commitments and Contingencies».

29. Discontinued Operations

On 25/8/2014, FOURLIS Group informed investors of the decision to divest from wholesale trading of
electrical equipment activity implemented by the subsidiary FOURLIS TRADE. The company IDEAL will
be the new distributor of the products Liebherr, Korting, Brandt and the kitchen hoods “"FOURLIS".
Following this evolution, Fourlis Group focuses even further in the retail sector, through the expansion
of IKEA and INTERSPORT.

Moreover, due to the highly loss-making operation of retail fashion activity segment (NEWLOOK
Stores) in Romania, the Management of the Group in communication with the franchisor NEWLOOK
UK proceeded to the gradual termination of the operation of the stores net of the company which was

completed within July 2015.

As a result, and in compliance with IFRS 5 “Non - current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, the disposal group was measured at the lowest price between book value and fair value

minus its sell cost.

Discontinued operations are presented distinctly in the income statement, statement of comprehensive
income and cash flows of the Group. The comparative data of the former corresponding period have
been reclassified in order to become similar and comparable to those of the current period. Income

Statement of the discontinued operations is presented below:

GROUP
Discontinued Operations

11 - 311272015 V1 - 31/12/2014
Revenue 1.142 17.899
Cost of Goods Sold (1.016) (14.595)
Other operating income 272 1.265
Distribution expenses (2.441) (5.759)
Administrative expenses (785) (3.660)
Other operating expenses (116) (1.155)
Financial expenses / income (241) (818)
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (3.185) (6.823)
Income tax 444 (1.895)
Non controlling interest - -
Profit /Loss After Tax and Minority (2.741) (8.718)

Interest

Discontinued operations are not distinctly presented in the Statement of Financial Position and are

summarized with comparative data previous year’s amounts, as follows:
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Group
Discontinued Operations Discontinued Operations
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Total Assets 19.960 30.188
Total Liabilities 1.172 17.460
The cash flows of the discontinued operations are presented below:
GROUP
Discontinued Discontinued
Operztions Operations
11-311122015 11311272014
Operating infiow / (outfiow) from dscontinued operations 10.554 6.664
nvesting infiow / (outfiow) from discontinued operations A 288
Financing inflow / (outfiow) from discontinued operations 8.06C 245
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 2
2421 4453

Net increase /decrease in cash and cash equivalents

30. Significant Additions in Consolidated Data

The most significant changes recorded in the Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial

Position as of 31/12/2015 in comparison with the corresponding data as at 31/12/2014 are the

following:

Decrease in the amount of “Inventory” despite the opening of new retail stores of sporting
goods, new IKEA Pick up Point and the development of e-commerce stores, is mainly due to
restrictions because of the imposition capital controls in Greece as well as the implementation
of more rational management methods of inventory mainly through the investment in the
supply chain center (robotic warehouse of INTERSPORT & TAF stores).

Decrease in the amount of “Trade Receivables” is due to the collection of open balances of

discontinued operation.

Decrease in the amount of “Cash and cash equivalents” is due to the seasonal funding needs

of the operational activity of the Group.

Increase in the amount of “Investments/Financial data available for sale” is due to the

evaluation of shares held because of participation in the recapitalization of Greek Banks.

Decrease in the amount of “Investments in affiliates and associates” is due to the accounting

of results of associated companies within 1/1 —31/12/2015.

Decrease in the amount of “Accounts payables and other current liabilities” is due to payment
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of suppliers goods within 1/1 — 31/12/2015.

The most significant changes recorded in the Consolidated and Separate Income Statement and
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2015 in comparison with the period
1/1 - 31/12/2014 are the following:

e Losses of amount € 535 th. registered in “Depreciation/ Amortization” in the separate financial
statements of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. based on impairment test on the investment in
GENCO TRADE SRL.

e Losses of amount € 469 th. registered in “Contribution to losses of subsidiary sale” in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group due to the transfer on 24/1/2015 of the
investment in SERVICE ONE S.A. which is subsidiary of FOURLIS TRADE S.A. which
disinvested from the wholesale trading of electrical equipment operation.

e Decrease in distribution and administrative expenses of continued operations despite the
expansion of both retail networks of the Group is due to the implementation of a restriction

program of operational expenses through restructuring of implemented labor methods.

31. Subsequent events

There are no other significant events following the date of 31/12/2015 that may affect the financial

position of the Group and the Company.
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Income on deprecation i fxed subsidy 236 406 o 0| Net Income Ross () 244
Provsio 815 773 157 125 | Aurbutabe to
Forsn xctnge diforonces a77 441 o 0 | Equty hoiders of the parent 1405 8244
Fesuts (ncome, xpenses, pof and s fom vestmert acity 59 ‘130 0 5 | Non-controling interest o o
Interest Expen: 13422 12805 2 40 | Net Income Loss () 74
Plus/less ad) lnrchlnﬂl In working capital related to the operating activities: Proposed Dividend per share - (€) 20,0000
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(Decrease) /ncrease in labiities (excluding banks) 2754 12645 217 1690 company
-3z - S1EE0
Interest paid 13845 12468 2 40 | Profi/ (Loas) afrar tex (A) 05 244
Income taxes paid 3465 -3.296 3 o Other comarahensive lncom / oss) o of
Operating nflow  (outflo) from ciscontinued operations. 10554 6604 0 o | o transtemed to the
Net cash genersted from operations (a) 27.015 9.341 535 -375 | Valuation of lable for sale 0 of
Investing Activiise Total Incomefiass Income statement . .
Purchase or ibsidi 6717 1540 o o Income statement:
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets. 0845 14173 2 23 | Acuarial gain/losses on defined beneft pa 7
Procoeds from disposal of tangbie and intangibie assets 21 ) o | Totelather compreheneive income/loas not tranafarrd 1o the Income
Addition of other investments 0 o o 0 | Other comprehensive incomefloss afier tax (B)
Procceds from sale from other investments 2789 o 3 0 | Total campranensive incomarioss aftar tax (4) + () 8285
Interest Received %2 79 3 s | Awibuabie o
Investing inflow (outfiow) from discontinued operations 7 288 0 0 | Eauiy olders of the parent 1398 -8.205]
Total inflow / (outfiow) from investing activitles (b) -13.730 -15.177. -26 -15 Non - controliing interest. o
Flnancing Activitiea Total (A) + (B) -1.308 -8.206)|
Sale  (Purchase) of weasury shares 0 o 3 o [Notes
Proceeds from borrowings. 21.925 72002 o o 1. The basic accounting principles applied are consistent with those applied for the Annual Financial Statements of 31/12/2014 excluding new or revised standards
Repayment of borrowings 34004 53,385 o o | andnterpretations mentioned in Note 3 of the Annual Financial Report
Repayment of leasing iabilies 2802 3390 0 0 | 2. subsidiary company has been contracted as guarantor through mortgaging of its propery to secure a subsidiary's liabiliies amounting to € 15.000 th,
Financing inflow / (outflow) from discontinued operations -8.060 [} o Subsidiaries mortgage its property to secure bond loans amounting to € 55.175 th, € 25.200 th, € 32.500 th and € 14.400 th.The parent company has contracted
Total inflow / (outfiow) from financing activities (c) -23.032 12.819 [ 0 | as aguarantor for the amount of € 3.100 th for an investment of an associated company. Subsidiary of the Group has a contractual obligation for inventory of at least € 25.000 th.
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalenta for the period (a)+(b)+(c) 0.747 6.983 -561 -330 3. There are no litigations or arbitration proceedings as well as resolutions of judicial institutions, which may have a material impact on the assets of the companies of the Group.
Gash and cash equialents at the beginning of the period 34715 27,869 626 956 | 4. The type of audit reportis unqualified.
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held -10¢ [] 0 5.The total headcount for Group and Company as at 31/12/2015 is as follows: Group 3.760 (31/12/2014: 3.710), Company 86 (31/12/2014: 76).
Cloaing balance, cash and cash equivalents 24.860 5 826 | 6. Subsidiary Companies, their location, Fourlis Holdings shareholding along with the method of consolidation are detailed in Note 1 of the Annual Financial Report.
7. The unaudited fiscal years for the Group companies are listed under Note 23 of the Financial Report. The accumulated provisions for the unaudited tax years amount to € 2.054 th. for the Group and to € 20 th. for
the Company. On 1/12/2015 the case of administrative appeal was discussed at the Administrative Court of Appeals against the decision of the Authority for the Settlement of Disputes under the context
of revising the actions of the Tax Authority. The Management estimates that the decision will not have significant impact on the income statement, cash flow and total financial position of the Group.
8. Eamings per share have been calculated on the WE\QNEG average number of shares outstanding at the reporting date.
9.0 31/12/2015 the Company did not have reasury share:
20, The Financial Statements of the pror year have boen respecivelyreclassified in rder o become similar and comparable t those of the current period concernig the presentation of discontinued operations
without differentiation of the total amounts (Note 29)
11. Atthe Shareholders Annual General Assembly dated on 19/6/2015 there was no proposal of dividend distribution for the period 1/1 — 31/12/2014 taking into consideration the financial results of the aforementioned period.
12. The Extraordinary General Assembly of the Company of September 27th 2013,under the Stock Option Plan, approved the disposal of 1.507.678
options.The program will be implemented in three waves, with a maturity period of three years per wave.On November 25th 2015, the Board of Directors
granted 502.578 stock opiions which compose the third of the three waves.
13. The transactions (1/1 - 31/12/2015) and the balances wih the related parties (under IAS 24) at the reporting date are presented below:
31121015
ROUP company
Income 176 a
Expenses 207 s
Receivables 167 a7
Liabilities 180 127
Transactions and fees of management member: 2658 488
Apart from thase presentad I the table above, there are no other ransations and balances between the Grous.Company and the Directors-Managers.
Waroussi, March 7 2016
The Chairman of the BOD The CEO The Finance Manager Controling & Planning The Chief Accountant

Vassilios Sti. Fourlis
ID No. £-700173

Apostolos D. Petalas.
1D No AK-021139

Maria I. Theodoulidou
ID No. T-134715

Sotiios 1. Mitrou
ID No Al 557890
Chartered Ac. License No. 30609 A Class
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Information pursuant to article 10 of Law 3401/ 2005

Protocol number | Date-Time Subject
27/01/2015
2015/EXAE/H/595 13:52 PUBLICATION DATE FY14 FINANCIAL RESULTS
05/02/2015
2015/EXAE/H/954 18:16 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
09/02/2015
2015/EXAE/H/1049 | 18:39 FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2015
09/02/2015
2015/EXAE/H/1023 | 14:23 ANNOUNCEMENT ACCORDING TO L. 3556/2007
24/02/2015 CORPORATE PRESENTATION REGARDING THE FINANCIAL RESULTS
2015/EXAE/H/1403 | 17:22 2014
24/02/2015
2015/EXAE/H/1396 | 16:33 ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS FY14
25/02/2015 PRESENTATION AT THE HELLENIC FUND AND ASSET
2015/EXAE/H/1426 | 14:10 MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION
29/04/2015
2015/EXAE/H/4557 | 14:29 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
29/04/2015
2015/EXAE/H/4566 17:36 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
29/04/2015
2015/EXAE/H/4567 17:48 PUBLICATION DATE Q1FY15 FINANCIAL RESULTS
04/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/4667 10:13 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
13/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5009 15:29 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
25/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5491 18:52 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
25/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5492 18:53 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
25/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5493 18:53 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
25/05/2015 INVITATION TO THE ANNUAL ORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
2015/EXAE/H/5494 | 19:04 THE SHAREHOLDERS
26/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5532 16:22 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS Q1FY15 (IFRS)
27/05/2015
2015/EXAE/H/5610 | 09:59 CORPORATE PRESENTATION Q1FY15
02/06/2015
2015/EXAE/H/6634 | 08:57 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
19/06/2015 RESOLUTION OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE
2015/EXAE/H/7446 14:25 SHAREHOLDERS
23/06/2015
2015/EXAE/H/7584 | 18:19 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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Protocol number | Date-Time Subject
30/07/2015

2015/EXAE/H/8175 18:10 PUBLICATION DATE H1FY15 FINANCIAL RESULTS
26/08/2015

2015/EXAE/H/8878 18:23 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
27/08/2015

2015/EXAE/H/8994 18:37 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
31/08/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9514 16:21 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS Q2FY15 (IFRS)
02/09/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9835 11:37 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
02/09/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9864 | 17:44 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
04/09/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9914 | 14:03 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
04/09/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9930 | 18:09 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
08/09/2015

2015/EXAE/H/9985 18:00 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
02/10/2015

2015/EXAE/H/10555 | 10:26 TAX CERTIFICATE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2014
29/10/2015

2015/EXAE/H/11031 | 17:32 PUBLICATION DATE Q3FY15 FINANCIAL RESULTS
24/11/2015

2015/EXAE/H/11926 | 16:34 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS Q3FY15 (IFRS)
14/12/2015

2015/EXAE/H/13317 | 10:31 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
17/12/2015

2015/EXAE/H/13544 | 11:21 ANNOUNCEMENT ACCORDING TO L. 3556/2007
22/12/2015

2015/EXAE/H/13709 | 18:17 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
23/12/2015

2015/EXAE/H/13730 | 12:03 TRADE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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Web site for ti blication of the A LFi ial Stat :

The Annual Financial Report of the Group (Consolidated and Separate), The Independent Auditors
Report and the Board of Directors Report for the year 2014 has been published by posting on the

internet at the web address http://www.fourlis.gr.
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